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INTRODUCTION

OVERVIEW

1. On 20 Julv 2009. Chamber I (“Chamber’) found Milan Lukic responsible pursuant to
Article 7(1) of the Statute of the Tribunal (“Statute”). for murder and cruel treatment as
violations of the laws of war under Article 3 of the Statute and for murder. persecution.

extermination and inhumane acts as crimes against humanitv under the Statute. The

Chamber sentenced Milan Lukic to life imprisonment.'

2. On 26 November 2009. Milan Lukic sought leave to amend his Notice of Apneal. On 4
December 2009. a Corrieendum was filed. On 16 December. the Appeals Chamber
oranted Milan Lukic leave to amend his Notice of Appeal and accented the Amended

Notice of Appeal annended to the Motion of 26 November 2009.

3. Pursuant to Article 25 of the Statute of the International Criminal Tribunal for the Former
Yueoslavia (‘‘the Statute’®) and Rule 111 of the Rules of Procedure. Milan Lukic files

his Appeal Brief settine out his erounds of anpeal acainst the Trial Judement.

4. Each alleged error of law was such as to invalidate the Trial Judement. and each alleged

error of fact. individuallv and/or cumulativelv. occasioned a miscarriage of iustice.

"'TJ paras.1099-1101.

CASE No. IT-98-32/1-A 17 MARCH 2010 Pe. 1
PROSECUTOR VS. LUKIC AND LUKIC MILAN LUKIC’S APPEAL BRIEF



THE LAW GOVERNING IDENTIFICATION EVIDENCE

5.

Identification was an essential issue in this case.” The United States Supreme Court has

empohasised that the “annals of criminal law are rife with instances of mistaken

3 Milan Lukic contends that. in relation to each crime site. the Chamber

identification. ...
failed to anolv due care to the evidence which tended implicate him. A failure to observe
the correct leeal standards mav invalidate the Chamber’s conclusion that Milan Lukic

was correctlv identified as a perpetrator of some or all of the alleeed crimes.

Despite the importance of identification evidence in this case. the Trial Judement
contains no reference to the aoprooriate standards. In setting out its position on
evidentiarv matters failed to direct itself to the kev legal orincinles. recoenised bv
Appeals Chamber. that eovern the assessment of identification evidence.* Milan Lukic

contends that this failure led to a lack of riecour when assessing the evidence.

A. Apblicable standards when assessing identification evidence

7.

The Appeals Chamber has repeatedlv emphasised the need to exercise “extreme caution”
in relation to evidence of visual identification of an accused. especiallv when the sighting
occurred in difficult circumstances.” This is because identification evidence is vulnerable

to

“...the frailties of human percentions and the verv serious risk that a miscarriage
of iustice might result from reliance unon even the most confident witnesses who
purnort to identifv an accused without an adeauate opportunitv to verifv their
observations.”°

In Kunarac. the Chamber underlined the risk of distorted recollection and the

vulnerabilitv to suegestion:

2T.372.Judee Robinson.

3U.S. v Wade.388 U.S. 218.228-229(1967)(footnote omitted): Kunreskic. AJ.para.36.
* Cf.Vasilievic.TJ para.16et sea.

3 Kunreski¢. Al.vara.34:Kvocka. AY.para.24: Limai. AJ.varas.27.30.

6 Kunreskic. Al.vpara.34.
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“Identification is notoriouslv uncertain. It devends uvon so manv variables. Thev
include...the extent of the obportunitv for observation in a varietv of
circumstances: the vagaries of human percention and recollection: and the
tendencv of the mind to respond to suggestions. notablv the tendencv to substitute
a photoeranhic image once seen for a hazv recollection of the person initiallv
observed.””

9. Sopecial caution is necessarv before accenting identification evidence because of the

possibilitv that even a completelv honest witness mav have been mistaken in their

identification.®

10. Milan Lukic contends that the Chamber failed to have prooer recard to fundamental
princinles governing the assessment of identification evidence. In Kupreskic. the Appeals

Chamber considered the following factors when assessing identification evidence:

a. identifications bv witnesses who had onlv a fleeting glance or an obstructed view:

b. identifications occurring in the dark:

c. identifications as a result of a traumatic event and as a result of a traumatic event
experienced bv the witness:

d. inconsistent or inaccurate testimonv about the defendant’s phvsical characteristics
at the time of the event:

e. misidentification or denial of the abilitv to identifv followed bv later identification
of the defendant bv a witness:

f. the existence of irreconcilable witness testimonies:

g. a witness’ delaved assertion of memorv reearding the defendant counled with the
“clear nossibilitv”’ from the circumstances that the witness had been influenced bv
sugegestions from others. In this regard. the Appeals Chamber noted that it is
unaccentable for a Trial Judee to make no comment on the frailtv of identification
evidence other than the general statement that evidence is credible and therefore

9
accented.

7 Kunarac.Chamber Decision on Motion for Acauittal(3.07.2000).para. 8.
8 Kunarac.Decision on Motion for Acauittal(3.07. 2000).para. 8.
® Kunrsekic.AJ.para.40.

CASE No. IT-98-32/1-A 17 MARCH 2010 Pe. 3
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11. While a Chamber is not obliged to refer to everv niece of evidence on the trial record in
its iudement. where a finding of euilt is made on the basis of identification evidence
ogiven bv a witness under difficult circumstances. the Chamber must rigorouslv
implement its dutv to provide a reasoned a opoinion. This means articulatine the factors
relied uoon in suppoort of the identifications and adeauatelv addressing anv sienificant

factors impacting neeativelv on the reliabilitv of the identification evidence.'”

12. Milan Lukic respnectfullv contends that the Chamber in this case fell far short of these

standards.

B. The Chamber’s treatment of ‘“recognition’ witnesses

13. Milan Lukic contends that the Chamber erred in its treatment of “recognition” witnesses.
The Chamber observed that the Tribunal’s case-law recognises a distinction between
“identification witnesses” and “recoenition wimesses”.'" Relving upon the Tadic Trial
Judement. the Chamber held that an “identification witness” is one who did not
previouslv know the accused bv sight. whereas a “recognition witness” is one with “prior
knowledge of the accused which enabled them to recognise the accused at the time of the
alleged crime.”"? In relation to individual crime sites. the Chamber sought to identifv anv
evidence that a witness “recognised” Milan Lukic before proceeding to place ereat

weight on the evidence of that witness. The Chamber failed to orooerlv direct itself to the

daneers of mistaken “recogenition”.

14. The distinction the Chamber drew between “identification” and “recognition” witnesses
was flawed. As noted bv the Haradinai Chamber. “recognition” evidence is iust a subset
of identification evidence: “in both cases. identification evidence must be treated with
caution as its aualities can denend on manv variables. such as the vagaries of human

. . 13 . . “ . .
percention and recollection.” > Evidence of claimed recoenition does not render it anv

10 Kubreskic. AJ.para.39.
"' TJ.para.31.
12 TJ para.31.
13 Haradinai. T1.para.29.

CASE No. IT-98-32/1-A 17 MARCH 2010 Pe. 4
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less vulnerable to error. The considerations affecting the reliabilitv of identification
evidence aoplv eauallv to purported recoenition evidence.'* Factors such as distance.
liehtine and surroundineg circumstances are also critical to the assessment of
“recoenition” evidence. Furthermore. the Haradinai Chamber considered that additional
factors must be considered in relation to “recognition” witnesses. such as the possibilitv

of bias and the interval between the time the witness “recognised” the person and the

time he had last seen him."

15. The aooroach of the Chamber in Haradinai is consistent with the approach in national
iurisdictions. Enelish caselaw reminds us that mistakes in recoenition can be made even
where close relatives and friends are involved.'® Where an alleced recoenition is made in
difficult circumstances. even on the basis of a lenethv observation. it cannot be reearded
as inherentlv more reliable than “identification” evidence. Manv people have experienced
seeing someone in the street whom thev knew. onlv to discover thev were wrong: “/

could have sworn it was vou” indicates the sort of caution that the finder of fact must

anolv.!’

16. In the case of recoenition. “the risk is not that the witness will nick out the wrong nersons
on a lidentificationl parade. but that at the time of the offence he mistakenlv thinks that

. 18
he recognises the offender.”

17. Importantlv. the Chamber diluted the standard of caution even further bv extending its
“cateeorv’ of recoenition witnesses. The Chamber held that the catesories of
“identification” and “recognition” cannot be so strictlv interpreted as to reauire that a
witness must have knowledee of the accused orior to the start of the commission of a
crime in order to be “classified” as a recoenition witness. The Chamber was satisfied that.

where a crime is committed over a “lone neriod of time and a witness has acauired

" Haradinai. TT.para.29.

SHaradinai.T).para.29.

1R v.Bowdenl19931Crim LR379.

R v.Bentlevi19911CrimLR620.CA.

8 Archbold §14-19 citing R v.Thomas(19941CrimLR128.CA.

CASE No. IT-98-32/1-A 17 MARCH 2010 Pe. 5
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sufficient knowledge of the accused during that period. such a witness is a ‘recognition

. 19
witness’”.

18. The Chamber did not cite anv authoritv for this aporoach. The risk of error in this
aporoach is nlain. and is compounded bv the Chamber’s pervasive nlacing of significant
weight on the evidence of “recoenition” witnesses. For examnole. the Chamber held that a
witness who allegedlv learned the name of their assailant durine the course of an attack

was proverlv considered as a “recognition” witness. Enelish caselaw reiects such an

.. . 20
anproach because of its inherent risk of error.

C. The Conduct of In-Court Identifications

19. In court identifications were performed in relation to everv crime site. Milan Lukic
contends that the individual and cumulative oreiudicial impact of these identifications

undermines the safeness of his convictions.

2 23

20.In Limai’'. Kunarac® and Kamuhanda® the Appeals Chamber considered that no

probative weight should be attached to in-court identifications. In-court identifications

are inherentlv unreliable because all of the circumstances of a trial necessarilv lead a

witness to identifv the person on trial.>*

21. Archbold states the orinciole as follows:

“The practice of invitine a witness to identifv a defendant for the first time when
the defendant is in the dock has long been regarded as undesirable.... Although a
trial iudee retains a discretion to nermit a dock identification. it is submitted that
in practice the exercise of such discretion should not even be considered unless:
(a) a defendant has refused to complv with a formal reauest to attend an
identification parade. and (b) none of the other identification procedures has
been carried out as a result of the defendant’s fault.’®

19TJ.para.34.

2 R. v.Fereus(19921CrimLR363CA.
Y Limai. AJ.para. 27.

2 Kunarac.AJ.para.320.

2 Kamuhanda.AJ.para.243.

2 Limai.A).para.27.

¥ §14-46

CASE No. IT-98-32/1-A 17 MARCH 2010 Pe. 6
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22. The Judicial Committee of the Privv Council. the highest anpellate court for numerous
Commonwealth iurisdictions. has held that a dock identification mav onlv be permitted in
excentional circumstances and where there will be no iniustice or nreiudice done to a
defendant. which will onlv be the case when there is no issue as to identification.”.
However. for manv vears courts in numerous iurisdictions have recoegnised that dock
identifications are permissible onlv in the most excentional circumstances. none of which

aoplv in this case.

23. In the circumstances of this trial. a photoeraph of Milan Lukic. in court. anpears on the
Tribunal’s own website. Exh.1D72 provides a sample of some of the photoeranhs of
Milan Lukic readilv available on the internet at the time witnesses travelled to The Hacue

to testifv. Footage of Milan Lukic’s trial was freauentlv broadcast in Bosnia. At least one

witnesses admitted that thev had seen such footage.”” In such circumstances. in court-

identifications should have been prohibited.

24. The Chamber held that orobative weight could be attached to in-court identifications
performed bv the witnesses it considered to be “recognition witnesses”.”® The Trial
Judement does not alwavs explicitlv categorise witnesses as “recognition witnesses”. but

as noted above the Chamber had an expansive definition of this “categorv” in mind.

% Constance.Wilson and Lee v The State Appeal No.31 of 1998.PC.
2 VG133.T.3029.
28 T paras.30-34.

CASE No. IT-98-32/1-A 17 MARCH 2010 Pe.7
PROSECUTOR VS. LUKIC AND LUKIC MILAN LUKIC’S APPEAL BRIEF



1848

FIRST GROUND: THE DRINA RIVER INCIDENT

SUB-GROUND 1(A): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY APPLYING THE WRONG LEGAL
AND EVIDENTIARY STANDARD TO THE CRIME OF MURDER

25. It is a well-established that the death of the victim must be proved bevond reasonable
doubt for an accused to be held responsible for murder. While proof of death does not
necessarilv reauire recoverv of a dead bodv.?’ in the absence of such evidence the

circumstantial evidence nroving death must be strone.

26. For murder to be established on the basis of circumstantial evidence. the victim’s death
must be the onlv reasonable inference.”® The Tadic Chamber held that where there is
more than one conclusion reasonablv onen on the evidence as to the death of a victim. it
is not for a Chamber to draw the conclusion least favourable to the accused.’’ In
Krnoielac. the Chamber held that alleged victims had not been killed on the basis that
there was evidence of: (i) death certificates with dates of death inconsistent with other
evidence (i1) incorrect names on death certificates: and (iii) possible alternative causes of

death.??

27. In relation to the Drina River Incident. the oroof of death relied unon bv the Chamber

was the account given bv evewitnesses. The Chamber found that five men (Meho Dzafic.

Ekrem Dzafic. Hasan Mutancic. Hasan Kustura and Amir Kurtalic) were killed.*

28. The bodies of the alleeed victims were not recovered and no death certificates were
presented. Cruciallv. the Chamber ienored the reasonable possibilitv that some of the
alleeed victims of the Drina River Incident are still alive. or that the circumstances of

their death are inconsistent with the prosecution’s case.

¥ Krnoielac.TI.paras.326-327.

30 Stakic. TY.para.939.

3! Tadic. T).para.240. See Oric.T).para.347
32 Krnoielac.TJ.paras.340-342

3 T para.200

CASE No. IT-98-32/1-A 17 MARCH 2010 Pe. §
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summarised below. In lieht of these material discrepancies. the reasonable inference

remained that the events alleeed bv the nrosecution did not take place.

Alleged Reasons whv the prosecution failed to meet its lesal and evidentiarv
Victim burden
Meho Dzafic e No bodv

e No death certificate

« Disappeared in Viseerad™

« Disappeared on June 7 1992%
Ekrem Dzafic e No bodv

e No death certificate

« Disapopeared in Holiiaci®

e Disapopeared in Viseerad®’

e Disapopeared on June 7 1992*

 Killed on June 7 1992*
Hasan e Bodv found in a place inconsistent with the crime site. Bodv
Mutapcic exhumed on 14 November 2002 at Kamenicko Tocilo-Srebrenica.*

Disanpeared in Bikavac®'
Disappeared in Viseerad*

Hasan Kustura

No bodv

r

Not listed as havine disanpeared in ICRC reports

Disappeared in Viseerad*
Killed on June 25 1992%

Amir Kurtalic

No bodv

No death

Disappeared in Sase*®
Killed on 31 Mav 1992"

#*P119.n.1
¥ P119.0.1
% P119.0.1
P119.0.9
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SUB-GROUND 1(B): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW WHEN HOLDING THAT. IN A NON-
JCE CASE. THE COMMISSION OF MURDER IS ESTABLISHED IN THE ABSENCE OF ANY
EVIDENCE THAT MILAN LUKIC KILLED EKREM DZAFIC. HASAN MUTAPCIC. HASAN
KUSTURA AND AMIR KURTALIC

30. The Chamber found that Milan Lukic shot at the seven victims of the Drina River
Incident. of whom five died. *® While the Chamber found that onlv one of the men was
actuallv killed bv Milan Lukic. it nevertheless held that he had committed the murder of
all five men.* The Chamber cited no authoritv to directlv support its approach. which
contrasts with the Appeals Chamber’s abnroach in the Tadic case where. on similar facts.
responsibilitv as a orincinal perpetrator was imposed on the basis of ioint criminal

enterprise liabilitv.

31. In this case. the prosecution chose not to allege ioint criminal enterprise liabilitv.>’ Faced
with this method of charegine. the Chamber drew an analoev with ICTR caselaw and held

that a person who “commits” a crime need not personallv commit the crime if the

) ) . . 5]
evidence shows that his acts were “inteeral’ to the crime.

32. This aporoach demands review bv the Appeals Chamber because causes confusion in the
law. The Chamber offered no standard bv which to measure whether acts are “inteeral”
to a crime. Milan Lukic respectfullv submits that the Aopeals Chamber should restore

certaintv to the law bv reiectine the Chamber’s anoroach.

33. In Gacumbitisi. the Appeals Chamber held that “/iln the context of genocide. [...1 “direct

and phvsical nerpetration” need not mean ohvsical killing: other acts can constitute

) e .3
direct particination in the actus reus of the crime.”” However. anv analogv between such
a laree-scale case and a single crime like the Drina River Incident is stretched. As Judee

Liu noted in his dissenting oninion in the Seromba case. the analvsis in Gacumbitsi does

11313

not mean that ““commirting” per se is not limited to direct and nhvsical nernetration

“8TJ para.194

4 TJ para.117.907.
01255

51T para.908

2 Gacumbitsi. Al .nara.60.
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and that other acts can constitute direct participation in the actus reus of the crime”.>

Milan Lukic did not directlv or phvsicallv kill the other victims. and so did not “commir”

murder.

34. Moreover. the analvsis of the Maioritv in Gacumbitsi was vague in that it failed to
54

explain which acts constitute direct narticination in the actus reus of the crime.
35. Judee Shahabuddeen pointed out in his separate ooinion in Gacumbitsi that co-
perpetration and the ioint criminal enterprise are two different theories that leeal svstems

follow alternativelv because these two theories overlap and therefore cannot both

. L. e e . 35
simultaneouslv be valid in the same iurisdiction.

36. The Appeals Chamber has decided that ioint criminal enterorise is the method bv which
an accused can be held responsible as a principal for the acts of others. The Chamber’s
aporoach in this case should be reiected. Subiect to the other erounds of anpeal advanced
in relation to the Drina River Incident. the highest at which the responsibilitv of Milan
Lukic can be put for the death of Ekrem Dzafic. Hasan Mutapncic. Hasan Kustura and

Amir Kurtalic is that of an aider and abettor.

SUB-GROUND 1(C): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY PERMITTING IN-COURT
IDENTIFICATIONS

37. Four prosecution witnesses testified to the Drina River Incident: VG014°® and VG032’

were survivors: VG079 claimed to have witnessed events from the other side of the Drina

5

river:”® and Mitar Vasilievic who was convicted bv this Tribunal as a particinant in the

crime.”’

53 Seromba.AJ. Dissentiing opinion of Judee Liu.para 2.

% Gacumbitsi.AJ.Dissenting ovinion of Judee Gunev.para 6.

55 Gacumbitsi.AJ.Separate opinion of Judee Shahabuddeen. para 50.
%6 TJ.paras.129-131.

37 TJ.paras.126-128.

38 TJ.para.135.

% TJ.paras.132-134.
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. . - . . . . 60
38. An in-court identification of Milan Lukic was performed bv the two survivors.” The
Chamber placed emphasis on the evidence of VG-014. whose evidence corroborated
Mitar Vasilievic’s evidence in certain respects. in order to reiect a defence submission

that Mitar Vasilievic had falselv implicated Milan Lukic in order to shift responsibilitv

. 61
awav from himself.

39. The Chamber should not have nermitted VG014 or VG032 to identifv Milan Lukic in
court. The identification of Milan Lukic as a perpetrator of the Drina River Incident was
disputed. Bv allowing VG014 and VG032 to identifv Milan Lukic in court. serious

preiudice resulted.

VG-014

40. VG014’s evidence was that he went to secondarv school with Milan Lukic in 1983 and
1984. thoueh thev were not in the same class. He described seeing Milan Lukic. during

breaks among other 300—400 students.’? The last time VG014 saw Milan Lukic prior to

the Drina River Incident was 1984. when thev were both 16 vears old.** Yet VG014

testified that he “recoenised” Milan Lukic as soon as he entered VG014’s house.**

41. Given that this “recognition” was disputed. no in-court identification should have been

permitted. It served no purnose other than to oreiudice the defence.

42. Cruciallv. VG014’s descrintion of the man who entered his house did not match Milan

%5 VG014’s evidence throughout

. . . 66
was consistent in this respect.

0T para.128-129.

81 TT para.195. See Vasilievic AJ.
2T .302-303

317297

% TJ.para.129.

% 1D1.n.2.

% Exhibit P5.T. 299. 01.388-393.
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43. Milan Lukic has never had a large birth mark on anv cheek.®’

44. The clear inference is that the man VG014 “recognised” on the dav of the Drina River
Incident was not Milan Lukic. A positive in-court identification. when circumstances
conspired to ensure that VG014 picked out Milan Lukic. was undulv oreiudicial. If the
prosecution wished to bolster VG014’s identification of Milan Lukic as the man he
“recognised” on the dav of the Drina River Incident. it should have done so bv a fair out-

of-court nrocedure.

45. VGO014’s identification of Milan Lukic as the perpetrator could not be relied unon in light
of this serious breach of due bprocess. The Appeals Chamber should consider the
identification evidence relevant to the Drina River incident in the absence of VG-014’s

positive “recoenition” of Milan Lukic.

VG032

46. VG032 had no personal prior knowledee of Milan Lukic before the dav of the Drina

River Incident.®® Given that identification was disputed. this should preclud an in-court

identification procedure.

47. This is unaltered bv VG032’s assertion that he had seen Milan Lukic on two isolated
occasions in April and Mav 1992. On one of these occasions he was apparentlv told bv a
friend that the man he saw was Milan Lukic. but was provided with no other
information about him whatsoever.”” VG032’s evidence was that he “did not pav much
attention”” to the man identified as Milan Lukic.”' Notablv. while VG032 remembered

Milan Lukic. he could not remember the names of the friends who pointed him out.”

1D10.1D11.1D12.1D13.1D14.1D15.1D16.1D17.1D45.1D46.1D50.1D72.1D126.P9.P10.P230.P231.P232. P258
8 TJ.para.207.

9 TJ.para.126.

T.1210

T.1212

2T1213
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48. Unlike VGO014. no descrintion was provided bv VG032 against which the defence could
test his purported “recoenition”. In these circumstances. an in-court identification
procedure is an evidentiarv short-cut which opreiudices the accused. The Abpeals
Chamber should consider the identification evidence relevant to the Drina River Incident

in the absence of the evidence of VG32.

49. If these submissions find favour with the Appeals Chamber. the onlv remaining evidence
is that of Mitar Vasilievic — a witness with a clear motive to implicate others in his crime
in an attemot to minimise his own involvement — and VG079. who was located across the
river and in no position to recognise anv of the peroetrators. Therefore. Milan Lukic’s

convictions for the Drina River Incident are unsafe and should be reversed.

SUB-GROUND 1(D): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY FAILING TO APPLY DUE CARE TO
IDENTIFICATION EVIDENCE

50. The Chamber failed to direct itself to the aporooriate standards when assessing

identification evidence. Of particular relevance to this identification evidence was the

issue of purpnorted recoenition based unon fleeting elances and the impact of traumatic

events on witnesses’ abilitv to recognise and remember their assailants.

51. The Chamber failed to direct itself to the possibilitv that VG032 and VG014 were
mistaken when thev “recognised” Milan Lukic — a man neither of them knew well and
who thev identified in most traumatic circumstances. For the reasons eiven above. no

reasonable Chamber havine apoolied the correct standards. could conclude that either

VG014 or VGO032’s “recognition” of Milan Lukic was reliable.

52. The Chamber failed to direct itself to the factors to be considered in weighing the hearsav
evidence of VGO073. This witness was aoparentlv told Milan Lukic’s name bv either a
“colleague” or a “friend” or his “brother-in-law”.”> The witness was inconsistent as to
which. The orover standards of identification evidence ensure extreme caution with such
evidence. The Chamber accented this witness’ “recognition” of Milan Lukic without

auestion.

3 T1.para.139: 1D2pe 3.
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Had the Chamber correctlv aoolied the oropoer standards. it would have concluded that

Milan Lukic had not been identified as a nerpetrator of the Drina River Incident.

SUB-GROUND 1(E): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT IN ITS ASSESSMENT OF THE
IDENTIFICATION EVIDENCE

54.

55.

No reasonable Chamber could have ignored important inconsistencies in witnesses’
descriotions of the man thev thought was Milan Lukic. The man VG014 identified as
Milan Lukic had a distinctive mole on his face. VG032’s evidence was that Milan Lukic
did not have a mole.”* No reasonable Chamber could fail to eive considerable weight to
this discrepancv. If VG014’s evidence of his familiaritv with Milan Lukic was accented.
his evidence had to be eiven more weight than that of VG-032. Accordinglv. no

reasonable Chamber could find that Milan Lukic had been correctlv identified.

Further. no reasonable Chamber could nlace anv weight on the purported identification
evidence of Milan Lukic bv VG073. who watched events unfold from across the river

through binoculars. for the reasons given above.

SUB-GROUND 1(F): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW IN ITS ASSESSMENT OF THE

EVIDENCE OF AN ALLEGED ACCOMPLICE. MITAR VASILIEVIC. AND REACHED
IRRATIONAL CONCLUSIONS

56.

57.

The Chamber accented that “Mitar Vasilievic recoenized Milan Lukic as having been
present during the events rior to and during the Drina River incident on 7 June 1992”."°
The Chamber erred in law bv failine to direct itself to the risks inherent in the evidence of

a co-accused.

The Chamber failed to orooerlv direct itself to Mitar Vasilievic’s bad character and
whether his evidence was tainted bv imporoner motive. VG014’s evidence was an

insufficient basis unon which to corroborate the evidence of Mitar Vasilievic. VG014

esifcd in Vasitevie's i |

*T.1209
5 TJ para.133.
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76

77 78 Mi
Mitar

Vasilievic had a clear incentive to manufacture his evidence to corroborate VG014 to

some extent and imolicate whoever VG014 imolicated.

" The Appeals Chamber should consider the evidence identifvine

Milan Lukic in the absence of the evidence of Mitar Vasilievic.

SUB-GROUND 1(G): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY REVERSING THE BURDEN OF
PROOF ON ALIBI

59. Milan Lukic’s alibi for both the Drina River Incident and the Varda Factorv Incident was

that he was in Belerade from 7 to 10 June 1992 and so was not in a position to commit

these crimes.

60. The Chamber correctlv described the leeal principles relevant to alibi evidence.®® These
were recentlv confirmed bv the Appeals Chamber in Zigiranvirazo. However. the
Chamber did not aoplv the leeal standard that it had described and instead reversed the

burden of proof.

61. The Appeals Chamber has recoenised that the laneuace used in a Judement can indicate
that the Chamber misaoplied the burden of proof. *' It is presumed that the laneuage used

in a iudement accuratelv describes the approach adooted bv the Chamber.®? A careful

T.5211-22

" T.1539-1540

8 T.1554-1556

" T.1499-1500

80 T paras. 22-29.

81 Musema.AJ. paras. 209.295: Limai.AJ. para.65:Kamuhanda.AJ.para.39.
82 Musema.AJ.para.209.
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analvsis of specific findings is necessarv to establish whether the Chamber misaonlied the
burden of proof.> Where a Chamber’s assessment of alibi evidence has not been

sufficientlv careful. the Appeals Chamber should conclude that the burden of proof was

reversed.®

62. Rather than consider whether Milan Lukic’s alibi was reasonablv possiblv true. the
Chamber considered whether the alibi had been nroved bevond reasonable doubt. The

following wordine demonstrates the Chamber’s erroneous aporoach:

a. “there are a number of aspects in MLD1’s account that are difficult to believe”:>

“I...1 the Chamber. therefore. considers that the testimonv of Hamdiia Vilic [...1
raise serious auestions [...1 as to the credibilitv of MLDI0 in general and in

resnect of her alibi evidence recarding the Drina river and Varda factorv

. 86
incidents”:

b. the enisode with the areument Milan Lukic had with the woman at MLLD15’s

epe e 87
partv “abvears somewhat strange and artificial’”:

c. “I...1 this inconsistencv is sufficientlv sienificant to call into auestion the alibi as

a whole. as it casts reasonable doubt on the alibi evidence of MLD10 and Zelko

Markovic. in addition to that of MLD1” :3%and

d. “I...1 the inconsistencv resulting from MLD24’s evidence casts further doubt

unon the veracitv of the alibi presented as a whole”.%’

63. Therefore. the annroach of the Chamber in practice reauired Milan Lukic to prove his
alibi bevond reasonable doubt. The lancuage used bv the Chamber cannot be read anv
other wav. The Chamber mav well have had doubts about Milan Lukic’s alibi. but this

did not mean that it was not reasonablv possiblv true.

8 Zigiranvirazo.A).vara.21.Musema AJ.varas.210.211.
8 Zigiranvirazo.Al.para.2 1

8 TJ.para.212

8 TJ.para.216(emphasis added)

8 TJ.para.221

8 TJ.para.223(emphasis added)

% TJ.para.226(emphasis added)
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SUB-GROUND 1(H): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT WHEN HOLDING THAT MILAN
LUKIC’S ALIBI WAS NOT REASONABLY POSSIBLY TRUE

64. No reasonable Chamber could conclude that that Milan Lukic’s alibi was not reasonablv

possiblv true. In assessine the alibi evidence. the Chamber erred in manv wavs.

65. First. the Chamber took account of unnroved allegations that alibi witnesses were bribed.
During the Trial. the Chamber ordered the prosecution to investigate possible charges of
contemnt of court for the alleged briberv of. amonge others. MLLD10. On 6 October 2008.
the Chamber held that there was insufficient evidence to proceed. but allowed the

Prosecution call Hamdiia Vilic in relation to the briberv alleeations.

66. Hamdiia Vilic testified that his familv perished in the Bikavac fire and that he believed
Milan Lukic to be responsible.” Therefore. this witness would never testifv on Milan
Lukic’s behalf.”' However. Vilic’s evidence was that he answered four phone calls from
Milan Lukic’® and people connected to him and that he aereed to 2o to MLD10’s house
to discuss Milan Lukic’s case.” Had the Chamber applied a consistent standard to the
evidence related to Milan Lukic’s alibi. it was bound to consider such allegations
“strange and artificial’’* Given that these serious alleeations were unproven. no

reasonable Chamber could consider them when assessing the evidence of MLD10.%

67. The Chamber repeated its error when assessine MLD1’s evidence. The Chamber held

that the nrosecution’s alleeations of contemot did not discredit his evidence as a whole.

but selectivelv considered these alleeations when considerine Milan Lukic’s alibi.”®
Similarlv. the Chamber reiected MLD1’s evidence on the basis of VG148. who testified

to a close relationshin with MLD1 but said he was never told of MLD1’s account of

being saved by Milan Lukic.” |

% TJ.para.215.T.3456

' TI.para.215

2 T.3457.3460.3461

% T.3463

% CfTJ.para.221 as to the evidence of MLD15.
% TJ.para.216.

% TJ.para.211

" TJ.para.213
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I ' No reasonable Chamber

can treat similar evidence on such an inconsistent basis.

68. Secondlv. the Chamber erred when reiecting alibi witnesses on the basis of minor
contradictions in their evidence which did not undermine the alibi ner se. When
assessing the credibilitv of MLLD1. MLD10. MLD15. MLD17 and Zelko Markovic. the

Chamber relied upon their inabilitv to eive specific information about Milan Lukic’s

mother’s health problems.”In relation to MLDI1. the Chamber relied upon his lack of

knowledee as to where Milan Lukic went after leavine him and his fiancée at Novi

Pazar.'” In relation to MLD15’s evidence. the Chamber relied upon his inabilitv to
specifv the exact time he saw an areument between Milan Lukic and another woman. The

101 .
l”. These are irrelevant

Chamber held that this was “strange and artificia
considerations. Thev do not touch upon whether Milan Lukic’s alibi was reasonablv

possiblv true.

69. Thirdlv. the Chamber imposed erroneous standards when assessing the alibi evidence.
The Chamber held that it was “difficult to believe” that MLLD17 met Milan Lukic on the

morning of 7 June 1992 and talked to him over the next two following davs.'®? This
“doubt” arose because MLDI17 testified that durineg April 1992 she would meet Milan

Lukic “occasionallv” but. in the view of the Chamber. her evidence chaneed significantlv

193 No reasonable Chamber

in cross-examination as to how often she met Milan Lukic.
could conclude that anv such inconsistencv eliminated the reasonable possibilitv that

Milan Lukic’s alibi was true.

70. Fourthlv. the Chamber relied unon the evidence of MLLD24 — that Milan Lukic’s parents
lived in a tent near his militarv position in Ruiiste for the first half of June 1992 — as

discreditine Milan Lukic’s alibi that he took his mother to Belerade for medical

% T.7082

% TJ.para.224

100 7T para.224
10" T) para.221
12 7Y para.222
13 T) para.222
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treatment.'® However. elsewhere the Chamber held that MLD24 was an unreliable

witness.'” No reasonable Chamber could discount his evidence on the one hand. then

relv uoon his evidence to undermine Milan Lukic’s alibi on the other hand.

71. Fifthlv. the Chamber erroneouslv held that the evidence provided bv MLLD10 and Zelko
Markovic did not refer to 1992. as opposed to anv other vear.' No reasonable Chamber
could adoot such an aoproach — their evidence. viewed as a whole. related to the war in
general and 1992 in particular. A failure to soecificallv identifv the vear 1992 was

immaterial.

72. Sixthlv. the Chamber erred in its assessment of contradictions in the alibi rebuttal

evidence. The Chamber noted “significant” contradictions in VG063’s evidence but held
07

that these did “not affect the credibilitv and reliabilitv” of her allegations.'

I © I

111

No reasonable Chamber could

place anv weight on this witness as rebuttineg Milan Lukic’s alibi.

73. For all these reasons. no reasonable Chamber could conclude that the evidence excluded
the reasonable possibilitv that Milan Lukic’s alibi was true. The Appeals Chamber should
correct the Chamber’s error and enter an acauittal for all counts related to the Drina River

Incident.

104 T hara.226

105 77 paras.625.627

106 Ty para.217

107 TJ para. 229

18 9D13 p.3:2D12 0.2:1D15 0.5:1D49.0.4
19 1D49p.4.7.

10 1D49.p.12

1 1D49.p.11
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SUB-GROUND 1(I): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT WHEN ASSESSING THE CREDIBILITY
OF PROSECUTION WITNESSES

74. This Sub-ground is withdrawn.

SUB-GROUND 1(IN: THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW OR ALTERNATIVELY IN FACT IN ITS
ASSESSMENT OF THE MENTAL SUFFERING OF SURVIVORS

75. This Sub-eround is withdrawn.
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SECOND GROUND:THE VARDA FACTORY INCIDENT

SUB-GROUND 2(A): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY APPLYING THE WRONG LEGAL
AND EVIDENTIARY STANDARD TO THE CRIME OF MURDER
76. The Chamber erred in its findine that Milan Lukic shot and killed''? 7 Bosnian Muslims.

because the death of these individuals was not proven.

77. An autopnsv report was oresented for onlv one of the victims-Hamed Osmanagic. This did
not provide a date or place of death.''® In respect of the other victims. the finding was

made solelv on the basis of the evidence of VG017. VG024. VG042, all unreliable

witnesses. Thev testified that some of the bodies were later buried in different locations.

but none of the bodies were exhumed or identified.'"

78. In summarv. each victims’ death was not established for the following reasons:

Alleged Victim Reasons

Hamed e The bodv found and identified''® as Hamed Osmanagic -
Osmanagic died at an unknown place and date'"”

. . . 118« . . .
e The identification report ° is inconsistent with the autonsv

119 e
report ~ as to the facial iniuries on the bodv

Nusret Aliosevic e No bodv found

e No death certificate

NedzZad Bektas e No bodv found

e Death certificate: date of death is 19 June 1992:

inconsistent with the Drina River Incident'?’

"2 TT para.329

13 TJ para.254.317.319
U4 TT para.318

STy paras 312.318
16 p1og

7 p123

18 p1og

19p123
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Musan Cancar

No bodv found

No death certificate

Ibrisim
Memisevic

No bodv found
No death certificate

The person is still alive. He submitted a reauest for the
return of his abandoned provertv in Omerigici village on
19 Mav 1999."*' VG017'* and VG042'* testified that thev
buried Ibrisim Memisevic. (VG042 located the spot as
being outside her front door) but neither mentioned the
presence of the other. The Chamber considered this a
minor inconsistencv that did not affect the witnesses’
2% If the location of the bodv was known. it

should have been exhumed.

credibilitv.

Lutvo Tvrtkovic

No bodv found

No death certificate

Sabahudin
Velagic

No bodv found

Death certificate: date of death: 30 Mav 1992. inconsistent

with the Drina River Incident'>

SUB-GROUND 2(B): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY PERMITTING IN-COURT

IDENTIFICATIONS

79. Three orosecution witnesses testified to the Varda Factorv Incident: VG017.VG024.

VG042. An in-court identification was nerformed bv VG024. despite the obiection of the

126 . . . .
counsel. ©° who was an emplovee of the factorv and claimed to recoenise Milan Lukic

durine the Varda Factorv Incident.'’”’ The Chamber relied upon this in-court

120 1D241

121 1D226.p.2
12T 2710/5-10
123 T.2792/3-10
124 TT para. 312
125 1D243

1267 3217.

127 TT.para. 264.
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identification for its conclusion that VG024 knew Milan Lukic and recognised him inside

the Varda factorv.'?®

80. The Chamber should not have permitted VG024 to identifv Milan Lukic in court. Bv

allowing VG024 to identifv Milan Lukic in court. serious nreiudice resulted.

81. The identification of Milan Lukic as the perpetrator of Varda Factorv Incident was

disouted. |

2 However. this was when Milan Lukic was a child. VG024’s

could not sav when the last time was that she saw Milan Lukic before the war. but

testified that it was when he left for militarv service.'"

"B 1o the

82. VG024’s evidence was that Milan Lukic was an “almost a regular visitor
Varda factorv in 1992 and she eave evidence of a prior incident on 25 Mav 1992.'%

However. this evidence did not diminish the risk of a mistaken recognition in relation to

anv of these alleged occasions.

133

-]34 is insufficient. Moreover. orior to VG024’s in-court identification of Milan

Lukic. she had misidentified him on at least two occasions.

84. Exhibit 1D80 is a statement that witness VG024 gave on 18 December 1998. In this
statement. VG024 identifies an individual wearing a red top and dark trousers in several

different photoeranhs as beineg Milan Lukic. These photoeranhs were admitted within

128 TT para. 323.

129 T.3206: Exhibit 1D78. 0.2: Exhibit 2D34. p.3.
130 TT para. 264.

BlT.3222.

1321 3223.

133 1D78.T.3249.

134T 3260.

CASE No. IT-98-32/1-A 17 MARCH 2010 Pe. 24
PROSECUTOR VS. LUKIC AND LUKIC MILAN LUKIC’S APPEAL BRIEF



1831

Exhibit 1D75. The individual in the photoeraphs is not Milan Lukic. The Chamber held
that this erroneous identification did not undermine VG024’s confirmation that she saw
Milan Lukic on the dav of the Varda Factorv Incident. The Chamber was satisfied bv her

explanation that the photoeraphs were “hlurrv’ and that she was unable to see prooerlv

. 135 . . ) e .
the man depicted. ”” However. a clear error. or even a risk of mistaken identification. in a

pre-trial procedure must prevent in-court identification.

85. Witness VG024 misidentified Milan Lukic on a further occasion|jjjj [ | GGG

.137

86. In anv event. VG024’s in-court identification of Milan Lukic took place 16 vears after the

Varda Factorv Incident. Appearances change ereatlv over such a period. Bv allowing
VG024 to identifv Milan Lukic in court. when the circumstances conspire to ensure a
positive identification. the Chamber erred in law. If the prosecution wanted to bolster
VG024’s identification of Milan Lukic. it should have sought to ensure the inteeritv of

the identification bv means of an out-of-court nrocedure.

87. It mav be tempting to reconsider all of VG024’s identification evidence to trv to undo the
damage caused bv her in-court identification of Milan Lukic. but leave her positive
“recoenition” in olace on alternate grounds. Such a temotation should be resisted. If no
important advantage was obtained bv the procedure. the nrosecution would not have used

it. Further. the in-court identification was intrinsic to the Chamber’s conclusion that

135 TJ para.263.

% 1D81.p.1.

713275
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VG024 recoenised Milan Lukic on the dav of the Varda Factorv Incident."*® Finallv. it is
impossible to discern the unseen impact that VG024’s in-court identification of Milan

Lukic had on the Chamber’s assessment of all her evidence.

88. The fairest remedv available to the Appneals Chamber is to consider the identification of
Milan Lukic in the absence of VG024’s evidence. This turns solelv unon the evidence of
VG042 — a witness at least 50 metres awav from the events. Therefore. the Appeals

Chamber should auash Milan Lukic’s convictions.

SUB-GROUND 2(C): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY FAILING TO APPLY DUE CARE TO
IDENTIFICATION EVIDENCE

89. The Chamber failed to direct itself to the apporooriate standards when assessing
identification evidence. Of particular relevance to Varda Factorv Incident were issues of:
distance. purported recognition. inconsistent accounts. and delaved assertions that it was

Milan Lukic who perpetrated the alleeed murders.

90. Had the Chamber correctlv anpolied the prooer standards. it would have concluded that

Milan Lukic had not been identified as the perpetrator.

VG042

91. The Chamber relied “primarilv’ on the evidence of VG042. who it concluded had a clear

line of sieht from the balconv of her house and was able to see what haoppened at the

Varda factorv that dav.'*

92. Recognition. The Chamber was satisfied that witness VG042 knew Milan Lukic before

140

the Varda Factorv Incident.”™ However. the last time she saw Milan Lukic before the war

was when he was a child.'*' The Chamber failed to applv anv ricour to VG042’s

138 TJ para.323.
139 TT para.300.
140 77 para.320.
4! TJ.para.257. SeeT.2781.
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recognition of Milan Lukic. Conseauentlv. the Chamber placed considerable weight unon

a “recognition” of Milan Lukic. when it should not have done so.

93. In particular. the Chamber agereed with the defence submission that it was impossible for

VG042 to see Milan Lukic as a voung bov on the bus before she was married. Their age
differences made this impossible.'** Further. VG042 estimated Milan Lukic to have been
about 40 vears old at the time of the Varda Factorv Incident.'* Desbite this evidence. the
Chamber was nonetheless satisfied that VG042 knew Milan Lukic before the Varda
Factorv Incident and. cruciallv. that she recoenised him on that dav.'* Had the Chamber
aoplied the standards of identification evidence rigorouslv. it would not have concluded

that VG042’s “recognition” of Milan Lukic was established.

94. Distance. Witness VG042’s evidence was that she able to recognise Milan Lukic even

though she was 50 metres “as the crow flies” behind the main eate of the Varda

factorv.'* Exh.P157 is a photoeranh used bv VG042 to indicate:(i)the top-floor balconv
of her house from where she observed events (marked with a circle):(ii)the location

where she alleged that she saw Milan Lukic nark a red Passat vehicle (marked with an

TR IR

x”’: and (iiithe location where she alleged that she saw victims being shot (marked with

%6 Even accentine this evidence at face value. and VG-042’s

lines next to the river).
assertion that her evesight was “eood” in 1992. 50 metres is a considerable distance — at
least the leneth of half a football pitch. The Trial Judement does not demonstrate extreme

caution assessing this evidence.

95. A Defence expert witness travelled to the site. He noted the laree area of the Varda

factorv complex. covering millions of sauare feet.'*’ Exh.1D216 shows his markines of
the distances involved based unon his visit: it was 75 to 100 metres from VG042’s house

to where she said she initiallv saw Milan Lukic. Exh.2D23 was a videotane shown to

192 See T.2777-2779.
13T 2831.

144 T7T para. 320.

145 TJ para. 238.

146 7 2793-2794.

47T 6576.
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VG042 which demonstrates the inherent unlikelihood of a positive visual recoenition of

Milan Lukic from her balconv.

96. Moreover. the record suegests that VG042 overstated her abilitv to perform
identifications from a distance. Exh.P153 is a photograoh of part of the Varda factorv. It
is iust about possible to make out a small number of peoole in the foreeround of this
photograph. standine next to a car. VG042’s evidence was that she was able to
“recognise” those peonle.'* The Appeals Chamber is invited to consider this photograph.

It is respectfullv submitted anv recoenition based upon this photoeranh is impossible.

I 1t i

submitted that such a detailed observation from (even) 50 metres is impossible.

97. The above submissions are not weakened bv VG042’s evidence that a child on the
balconv with her was able to recognise her father amonest the victims and screamed out.
The Chamber failed to consider that the probabilitv of accurate recognition increases with
familiaritv. For examble. the child could well have recognised her father on the basis of
distinctive clothes that he was wearing. The abilitv of a child to recoenise its father did

not establish that VG042 correctlv identified Milan Lukic.

08. Traumatic events. In addition to the undoubted trauma of the events witnessed bv
VG042 durine the Varda Factorv Incident. the Chamber failed to consider the impact of
events earlier that dav. VG042’s evidence was that earlier that morning her husband was

taken awav bv a man she identified as Milan Lukic. She showed “considerable

150

confusion” over timing and the seauence of events. ~ It mav be she confused the person

who took her husband awav that mornine with the nerson who she saw kill the victims of

the Varda Factorv Incident.

148 72793,
149 1D68. n.3.
150 T para.242.
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VG024
100. The Chamber also relied unon VG024’s recollection of events.'>*
101. Recognition of Milan Lukic. VG024’s purported recoenition of Milan Lukic was

addressed above. A further example of lack of care aoolied to this evidence is the
Chamber’s finding that on the dav of the Varda Factorv Incident. VG024 heard Milan

Lukic sav to another emplovee of the Varda Factorv who was also named Milan: “I’'m

Milan as well”.">® This was not VG024’s evidence. VG024 testified that this occurred on
25 Mav 1992. not the dav of the Varda Factorv Incident."* Conseauentlv. the Chamber
failed to oroverlv assess VG024’s recoenition of Milan Lukic on either 25 Mav 1992 or

the dav of the Varda Factorv Incident.

102. A fleeting slance. VG(024’s testified that on the dav of the Varda Factorv Incident
she was about to leave at around 11:45 when: “as soon as I turned around. I realised that

Milan Lukic was coming mv wav. As soon as I set eves on him -- we passed each other. |

nassed him and I smiled.”"> Given that VG024 passed this man “as soon” as she set eve
on him. VG024’s opportunitv to “recognise” the individual was necessarilv limited. The
Chamber failed to direct itself to or nrooerlv consider the opportunitv that VG024 had to

recoenise Milan Lukic in light of this evidence.

B 1D66.0.6.
152 TT.para.303.
153 TT.para.263.
13473223,

155 T 3225.
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SUB-GROUND 2(D): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT IN ITS ASSESSMENT OF THE
IDENTIFICATION EVIDENCE
103. All of the prosecution’s witnesses testified to the presence of other individuals.
While the Chamber did not accent VGO017’s identification of Milan Lukic in light of
“significant inconsistencies”. it is notable that VG017 testified to the presence of three
men in uniform.””® VG024’s evidence was that Milan Lukic came into the factorv but one

157 . .
Thereafter. even accentine VG024’s evidence as

other person waited at the entrance.
the Chamber did. she did not observe the incident without interrupntion and did not have
an unobstructed view to the bank of the Drina river.">® VG042’s evidence was that Milan

Lukic arrived with the “driver” of the Passat. who she presumed to be Sredoie Lukic.'’

104. This evidence. especiallv eiven the difficulties over VG042’s purported
recognition discussed above. provided no basis upon which a reasonable Chamber could
conclude that Milan Lukic — as onpnosed to another individual - had been identified as the
shooter. The Chamber comnletelv failed to address this issue. excent for “recalling its
finding that another man was with Milan Lukic when he arrived at the Varda factorv” but
noting that “there is no evidence that this man or anv other armed persons were with
Milan Lukic at the river and could have shot the men.”'®

105. The Chamber failed to address a fundamental incomnatibilitv in the evidence of
VG042 and VG024. VG042’s evidence was that earlier on the dav of the Varda Factorv
Incident. she witnessed Milan Lukic take her husband and two other individuals awav
from the Varda factorv.'®! However. according to VG024’s evidence. she was present in
the Varda factorv throughout the mornine. Her failure to mention such an occurrence is

strikine and was not addressed bv the Chamber.

156 TJ para.234.

57 T para.234.

158 TJ para.304.

159 T para.234.

190 T para.325.

191 7.2787-2788.
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106. Moreover. the evidence of VG042 and VG024 differed as to the location of the
red Passat. Witness VG024 placed the Passat at the water’s edee.'®> Witness VG042

placed the Passat at the euard’s house. noticeablv closer to her house.'®> The Chamber
failed to consider the difference in these accounts. Cruciallv. if VG024’s evidence was

accepnted and credible. it made VG042’s “recognition” of Milan Lukic even less likelv.

SUB-GROUND 2(E):THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY REVERSING THE BURDEN OF
PROOF ON ALIBI

107. See. discussion under Sub-Ground 1(G) combined with 2(F) below.

SUB-GROUND 2(F): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT WHEN HOLDING THAT MILAN
LUKIC’S ALIBI WAS NOT REASONABLY POSSIBLY TRUE

108. Milan Lukic oresented the same alibi apolicable to both incidents Varda and

Drina. Witnesses VG131. VG141 and VG133 testified as alibi rebuttal witnesses for the

Varda factorv incident.'®*

109. The Chamber failed to anolv due care to the identification evidence of VG131.
Before encountering Milan Lukic on 9 June 1992. the witness had never seen. heard of or

met Milan Lukic.

165

166

168

192 BExhibit P192.

13 Bxhibit P157.

194 T .paras.278-280.281-297.328
195 1D89.para.11

166 1D89.para.23

7 1D88

18 1D89.para.10
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169

112. The Chamber erred in ignoring the following problems VG131’s evidence:
identification occurred in the dark and as a result of a traumatic event experienced

directlv bv the witness.

113. The Chamber failed also to aonlv due care to the identification evidence of

=
—*
=
o
1)
2]
<
2
=

114.

115. The witness testified that she was extremelv scared and shocked throughout the

. . 172
relevant neriod of time.

173

116.

117.

"">This contradicts

her testimonv before the Tribunal. where she stated that she saw her father-in-law.

mother-in-law and VG133 on the same date. and it was then that all three confirmed that

19 1D89.para.17

170 1D224 .4 at:T6745

7" 1D224 4 at .3 para.6

12 T6768

3 T6745:1D224.4 at n.2.para.4.n.3nara.6
174 1D224.4 at para.7

175 1D224.4 et para.8
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it was Milan Lukic.'”® She testified that she did not know how her father-in-law knew

that it was Milan Lukic.'”’

118. During her cross-examination. the witness chaneed her storv again and said that

. . 178 . . .
she “recognized him bv the red Passat car”. ' The red Passat is not mentioned in her

statement. During cross-examination. the witness could not explain whv she omitted this

information. other than savine that “she did not know whether it was important”.'””

119. Furthermore. she stated that she filed a police report when she got to Visoko.

. . . . 180 . . . .
where she identified Milan Lukic on a photo spread. This crucial information was
missing from the statement. During cross-examination. the witness could not explain whv

she omitted this information. other than savine that she “didn’t think there was anv need

to. to talk about a picture”.'®" although later in her testimonv she stated that she believed

that “it was sufficient for [herl that her neighbours had confirmed that it was Mr. Milan

Lukic 55182

120. The Chamber erred in relvine on the identification of the witness who had no
prior knowledee of the Accused. and whose rationale for identification of the accused

varied throughout the trial.

121. Concerning VG133. she was found to be a reliable alibi rebuttal witness'®

althoueh her evidence was completelv inconsistent reearding the date of the events she

testified about. She testified that the events she described had occurred on the 10 of
June'® but durine cross examination she first reaffirmed that date and later on said that

she could not remember the date of the incident.'® It was her husband and mother-in-law

176 T 6750

T .6777

T 6771

7T 6771

180T 6778
B1T.6778
8276779

183 T para.328
1847.2972-2973
1857.3024-3026
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who had reminded her that Milan Lukic had arrived on the same dav she went looking for

186
her mother.

187
2 N -

123. Notwithstanding these inconsistencies. VG133 was considered a reliable witness

because his evidence is corroborated bv VG141’s evidence who testified that the same

1A kev question is whv the Chamber instead of

events haonened on the 10 of June.
using the VG133’s evidence to discredit VG141’s evidence it anoroached the issue the
other wav round. And if this is the method used bv the Chamber. whv it onlv anplied it to

the Prosecution’s evidence and not to the defence’s as well?

124. In anv case. the incredible evidence nroduced bv the Prosecution did not establish

that Milan Lukic’s alibi was not reasonablv possiblv true.

SUB-GROUND 2(G): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT WHEN ASSESSING THE
CREDIBILITY OF PROSECUTION WITNESSES

VG042 and her account of dav of the Varda Factorv Incident

125. VG042’s evidence was that the dav before the Varda Factorv Incident. Ms. Zukic

was killed. During the evening she received threatenine phonecalls at home prompting

192

her familv to spend the night in the woods. * The next mornine. her husband went to

work at 7.00am meanwhile she went to the Zukic house to help place her bodv in a car.'”

She then returned to her home. At half past ten. when the factorv workers eot a break for

breakfast. Milan Lukic came in a red Passat and took her husband and two other men

186 T 3022-3023.3025

87T 3022

188 T 2972-2973

189 T.2973.3014-3015. 3017-3018
10T 3019.T3014

1T 6787

1927 2802.

193 T 2801.
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awav. Milan Lukic subseauentlv returned. nerhans half an hour later. to commit the

killines for which he was convicted.'**

126. VG042’s evidence lacked credibilitv in important resnects.

197 The

Chamber noted that when asked about the discrepancies between her orieinal statements

and her oral evidence. VG-042 “demonstrated confusion”.'”®

127. The Chamber decided that it would not attach anv orobative value to VG042’s

199 rp. s . . ) )
This was an unreasonable conclusion which deorived Milan

1993 or 1994 statements.
Lukic of important evidence undermining the credibilitv of VG042’s account. esneciallv
her complete failure to mention Milan Lukic’s involvement in her first statement. No

reasonable Chamber would have adonted such an aporoach.

VG024

128. The Chamber overlooked material inconsistencies which o to the credibilitv of
VG-024’s account. VG024 testified that after “recognisine” Milan Lukic inside the
factorv. she left and saw Milan Lukic take the victims towards the sawmill where thev

were made to remove items of clothing before being taken down to the Drina river and

shot.?” Exh.P190 is witness VG024’s depiction of the route she took. Written on

Exh.P190 in red is: (1) where she worked inside the factorv: (2) where she said she saw

Milan Lukic enter the factorv: (3) the sawmill: and (4) where she said she saw the red

194 7 2788-2790.
19 1D66

1% 1D67

197 1D67.0.3.

198 TTpara.242.
199 TIpara.242
2001 3226-3229.
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Passat vehicle parked.”’! On Exh.P191. VG024 indicated (2) where she said she stopped
outside the factorv and observed events: and (3) where she said she saw Milan Lukic and

. . .o 202
the imminent victims.

129. Witness VG024 eave prior statements describing waht she observed on the dav of
the Varda Factorv Incident. Exh.1D178 is a statement she gave in 1994. This contains no

mention that she observed events outside the factorv. Rather. she said that neonle were

taken outside and “after a few minutes... mv colleagues and I heard vollevs of automatic

fire” ™ Exh.1D179 is a statement she eave in 1998. On this occasion. her account was

that she had heard from another individual that Milan Lukic had shot the seven men in
front of the sawmill on the bank of the Drina river.”**

130. The Chamber placed no weight on the fact that VG024’s orior statements did not
mention her seeing Milan Lukic taking the men to the Drina river and lining them up “in
light of her confirmation while testifving that she had seen this taking place.” No
reasonable Chamber could dismiss these inconsistencies. The clear risk existed that in

oral testimonv VG024 had either deliberatelv or unconsciouslv extended her account of

what she saw.

131. There is further evidence to suoport this conclusion. During oral testimonv. 16
vears after the event in auestion. VG024 asserted for the first time that she saw peoole on

the balconv of a house. Exh.P192 is VG024’s depiction in red of (1)where she said she

206 1,
It 1s

saw people on a balconv: and (3)where she said she saw the red Passat vehicle.
notable that the location she identified of the red Passat differed from the location

indicated in Exh.P179.

"7 No reasonable Chamber could

2011 .3230-31.
20273253,

23 Bxh.1D78.0.3.
24 Bxh.1D79.0.5.
205 T para.304.
2067 3233,

27T 3266
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fail to consider the reason for this delaved assertion. particularlv in lieht of the evidence

given to remarkablv similar effect bv Witness VG042.

SUB-GROUND 2(H): THE CHAMBER REACHED IRRATIONAL CONCLUSIONS WHEN
CONVICTING MILAN LUKIC OF PERSECUTIONS IN RELATION TO THE VARDA FACTOR
INCIDENT

132. The Chamber adonted an irrational aporoach to Count 1 (persecutions) and

Counts 6 and 7 (murders).

133. At para.1005 of the Trial Judement. the Chamber held that it would not hold
Milan Lukic responsible for separate persecutorv acts in relation to the Varda Factorv
Incident. but rather consider them in sentencing. The rationale for the Chamber’s
annroach was that the persecutorv were “so closelv intertwined with the act of murder

that thev cannot be distinguished from that act”.

134. However. at para.1026 the Chamber ienored its earlier determination and

proceeded to convict Milan Lukic of nersecution for the Varda Factorv Incident.

135. The results of the Chamber’s erroneous anoroach are that (1YMilan Lukic was
convicted of crimes which. on the facts. the Chamber had found to be cumulative of each
other: and (2YMilan Lukic was sentenced twice for the persecutorv nature of the killines

durine the Varda Factorv Incident.

136. The Appeals Chamber is invited to correct the Chamber’s error and (1)overturn
Milan Lukic’s conviction for nersecution under Count 1 of the Indictment. so far as that
relations to the Varda Factorv Incident: and/or (2)recoenise the Chamber’s error bv

reducine Milan Lukic’s sentence.

1819
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THIRD GROUND: THE PIONIRSKA STREET INCIDENT

SUB-GROUND 3(A): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY APPLYING THE WRONG LEGAL
AND EVIDENTIARY STANDARD TO THE CRIMES OF MURDER AND EXTERMINATION

A. Insufficient nroof that all of the alleged victims died as allesed

137. Insufficient proof of death was presented for the Pionirska counts. Bodies were
never found or exhumed for anv of the alleeed victims and no death certificates were
presented. Other than alleged evewitnesses. the onlv evidence given was Ewa Tabeau’s
report.””® The Chamber found that 59 (of 70 chareed) were killed bv Milan Lukic.*” The
Chamber failed to establish with sufficient certaintv that all of these individuals were

victims of the Pionirska Street Incident.

138. The Chamber failed to oropoerlv consider evidence demonstratine that some
victims were alive. had never existed. or that the date on which thev died was

inconsistent with the Pionirska alleeations. The Chamber failed to consider:

a. Resnonses from Reauests for Assistance from Bosnian Authorities indicating that
the maioritv of victims did not exist and do not have a JMBG.*'° These responses
also demonstrate allesed victims registering their current address or filing
reauests for abandoned prooertv?'! after the Pionirska Street Incident:

b. Medical documents demonstrating that an alleged victim received medical
treatment on a date after the Pionirska Street Incident:*'>

c. Testimonv of CW1. a person listed as a scheduled murder victim. who denied that
thev nor several familv members were even in Viseerad at the time. casting doubt
on other named victims having existed.

d. Testimonv of Huso Kurspahic demonstrating the inaccuracv of Schedule A of the

Indictment listine the alleeed victims.

208 7T para.389
209 T para.567
210 1D233.1D221
21 1D226

22 1D225
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e. Exvert forensic evidence that the house at Pionirska could not have had a fullv

evolved fire involvine the stated number of victims.

f. Testimonv of Amor Masovic that no human remains were located at Pionirska nor

bodies exhumed.

o. Ewa Tabeau’s P119 confirms a lack of anv independent evidence as to the

existence of certain alleeed victims.

139. The proof of the death of each of the victims was not been established for the

following reasons:

Alleged victim(s)

Insufficient evidence of nroof of death

All 59 individuals identified bv
the Chamber in nara.567 of the
iudement

No Bodv
No Death Certificate

Hasena LNU

Tima Jasarevi¢/Velic.
Haira Jasarevi¢/Halilovié.
Muio Jasarevi¢/Halilovic.
Aliia Kurspnahi¢

Dzheva Kursnahié.

FNU Kurspahi¢.

Hasa Kurspahi¢.
Hana/Hasiba Kurspahi¢.
Hata Kurspahié.

Ifeta Kurspahic.

Ismet Kursnahic.

Izeta Kurspahic.

Maida Kurspahié.

Meira Kurspahic.

Mina Kurspahic.
Munevera Kurspahic.
Pasiia Kurspahi¢.
Ramiza Kurspahic.
Sadeta Kurspahi¢.
Saima Kurspahic.

Seila Kurspahié.

Vahid Kursnahic.

Fazila Memisevic.

No Bodv
No Death Certificate Presented

RFA Respnonse shows no JMBG (ID
number) or other reeistration person’s

. 213 .
existence. Confirmed bv Ewa

Tabeau’s chart’'* which lacks JIMBG
proof of existence. The importance
of the JMBG and the storage of
records was explained bv witnesses

from the Viseerad Police.”"”

213 1D233.1D221
24 p119
215 7oran Uscumlic.Stoia Vuiicic
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Haraga Sehi¢.

716
Hasena LNU

. .. .,217
Hairiia Kursnahi¢

. ., 218
Hana/Hasiba Kurspahic.

., 219
Hasan Kursnahic¢.

. . 220
Izeta Kurspnahi¢.

. ., 221
Maida Kurspahi¢.

. .. 202
Mina Kurspahic.

. . 1223
Seila Kurspnahi¢

No Bodv

No Death Certificate

CW1 testimonv creates reasonable
doubt the individual perished in anv
fire at Pionirska

Redzo Memisevi¢
Ismet Kurspnahic¢
Medo Kursnahic
Hasan Kurspahic
Meho Jasarevi¢/Halilovié

No Bodv
No Death Certificate

RFA Response shows individuals are
alive and sought return of prooertv

after Pionirska Street Incident>**

Ismeta Kurspahic

No Bodv

No Death Certificate

Viseerad Health Center Loes
225

demonstrate individual alive

Muio Jasarevi¢/Halilovié

No Bodv
No Death Certificate

B. Grosslv inadeauate forensic evidence

140.

67 locations in ViSeerad Municinalitv.

was linked to the Pionirska Street Incident.

26T 5561
17T.5565-5566
2187 5568-5569
19T 5566-5567
207 5569-5570
21T .5570-5571
2275572

23T 5574

24 1D226

225 1D225

2267 3182-3183.P183.P174
27 T3185-3186
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Amor Masovic. a nrosecution witness. testified 311 bodies were exhumed from

Of that forensic evidence. 0% (0 out of 311)

227 . . .
No forensic evidence was obtained bv the
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prosecution. Masovic conceded that the reasonable conclusion exists that the events did

not occur and that witnesses were beine untruthful. >

C. Insufficient nroof that the fire occurred as alleged

141. The Chamber failed to appreciate the sienificance of three defence experts that the
fire could not have occurred as alleeed.?”” The Chamber abproached defence expert

evidence as beine aualified and uncertain. In fact it was categorical.

142. The evidence of Beniamin Dimas. an arson expert. was that:

a. There was no evidence indicatinge the results of an air-fuel expolosion of the nature

postulated bv the Prosecution:**"

b. Dark areas around the doorwav were tested with a scratch test and determined to

) ) . 231
be moisture and mould. not ash or soot resultine from a fire:

. . " 232
c. Discoloured wooden door shims were caused bv mould rather than a fire:

d. The exterior of the structure and onenings did not show anv siens consistent with

. . .. . 233
a fullv enveloned fire havine been inside the subiect room:

e. It would have been impossible to remove all evidence of fire. and searches of the
wood and dirt floor revealed no evidence of a fire of the tvpe alleged:>**
f. There was evidence of a small fire. faeces. and chicken bones indicating someone

living in the room and making a small cooking fire. but not rising to the intensitv

.35
necessarv to consume a whole room full of bodies:

o. The water seepage and moisture present in the room would act to preserve rather

than wash awav evidence of fire damage. which could not have been covered up

bv mould erowth.>**

228 Id

2 SeeTJ.para.553
B0T.5954-5955
B1T.5955-5957.1D165.1D187
22 P280.1D188.T.5958-5959
2375960

4T 5964-5966
B5T.5969-5972. 5975
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h. If 60+ persons been in the room during a fire. their bodv mass would have fueled
the fire even more. leading to the deposit of forensic evidence that was not present

at all.>’

143. The evidence of Martin McCov. another arson expert. was that:

The forensic evidence disproved the possibilitv of a fire havine enveloned the

room: >**

b. Based unon data on-scene throughout the room and from all surfaces there was no
fire of ereat intensitv that fullv envelopned the room: there were remnants of a
small debris fire in one small part of the room. but also manv surfaces untouched
bv fire. including wood that was pristine.>*”

c. The darkened aopearance of the wood floorine in the room was caused bv
moisture and possible rottine rather than charring.**’

d. The darkened wood at the door frame and the darkened plaster around the door
area were the result of mould. and did not show evidence of anv exposure to heat.
fire. discoloration or charrine. Had a fire taken place. such effects are
irreversible.?*!

e. The Pine Chase or chimnev in the room lacked anv evidence of a fire or soot thus

excluding the possibilitv that there had been a fullv enveloped fire in the room.>*?

144. The evidence of Stephen O’Donnell. an explosive expert. was that:

) . . . 043
a. The darkened wood flooring was not carbonized or subiected to fire.

b. None of the wood in/around the door showed evidence of fire damage.***

26T.5972-5974
7T 6098.6099
B8 T 5665.1D22
29T .5688.5689
20T 5695.5697
21T .5698-5699
227 .5707-5709
23 T.5440.1D145
24T 5484
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. 045
c. Blackened anpearance of concrete was due to mould. not fire.

d. In response to the orosecution’s assertion that a fuel-air-explosion occurred.

nobodv could possiblv have survived such an event and there would certainlv
4,246

have been no screams for half an hour as alleee
145. No reasonable Chamber could fail to aporeciate the significance of the above
evidence. Reasonable doubt remained as to whether the fire occurred as alleeed in the

Indictment.

SUB-GROUND 3(B): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY PERMITTING IN-COURT
IDENTIFICATIONS

146. Eight prosecution witnesses testified to the Pionirska Street Incident: VGO13.
VGO18. VGO038. VGO78. VGO084. VG101. VG115 and Huso Kurspahic (hearsav via his
son). The Chamber permitted four of the witnesses to identifv Milan Lukic in court as a
perpetrator involved in the Pionirska Street Incident: VG013**. VG078>*. VG101*** and
VG115™°. The evidence of VG078. VG101 and VG013 was vital to the Chamber’s
findine that Milan Lukic had been correctlv identified as responsible for the Pionirska

Street Incident.

147. The Chamber should not have allowed anv of these witnesses to identifv Milan

Lukic in court. Counsel for Milan Lukic obiected to in-court identification in relation to

251

the Pionirska Street Incident.”" The identification of Milan Lukic as a participant in the

Pionirska Street Incident was disputed. Bv allowing these witnesses to identifv Milan

Lukic in court. serious preiudice resulted.

VG013

575508

2675506

27 TJ.para.415

248 TJ para.424

29 TJ.para.428

250 TJ para.433
B1yG013:T.1010-1011:VG101:T.1453:VG115:T.794
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148. VGO013’s evidence was initiallv that the first time she saw Milan Lukic was on 14

252 An in-court identification should

June 1992. the dav of the Pionirska Street Incident.
never be permitted in such circumstances. If the prosecution wished to bolster this

witness’ identification evidence done so bv an anorooriate out-of-court nrocedure.

149. The orosecution asked VG013 witness if she could recoenise Sredoie Lukic in the

court room. In answerine. VG013 identified Milan Lukic as well.>>>

150. It is no answer to sav that her identification of Milan Lukic in court was not
prompted bv the prosecution. The prosecution asked her to identifv Sredoie Lukic. who
was sitting next to Milan Lukic in the dock. The clear risk existed that she would identifv
both accused when asked to identifv one. No in-court identification should be performed

in these circumstances.

151. After VG013 had identified Milan Lukic in court. her evidence changed

significantlv. In cross-examination she asserted. for the first time. that she had seen Milan

Lukic prior to the incident in the area in which she lived.> She said that she saw Milan
Lukic twice a vear when she went to the Panos hotel and said that he was a neighbour in
her communitv.”>> This witness eave four previous statements: Exhibit 1D26 is her
statement of 11 Aueust 1995: Exhibit 1D29 is from 14 Aueust 1995: Exhibit P60 is
from 12 to 13 Februarv 1998: and Exhibit P62 is from a 5 Mav 2008. Not once did this

witness mention such orior knowledee of Milan Lukic.

152. Having identified Milan Lukic in court. VG013’s evidence of her nrior knowledee
of Milan Lukic mushroomed. The Chamber inexplicablv ienored VG013’s categorical
evidence that had not known Milan Lukic: rather the Chamber found that VG013 had
“solid prior knowledge” of Milan Lukic and acceoted her identification of him as the

perpetrator of kev aspects of the Pionirska Street Incident.”’® The real risk exists that

2T.1055
23T1010
4T 1104
B5T1105
230 T para.612
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VGO013’s evidence that she “recognised” Milan Lukic during the Pionirska Street
Incident was polluted bv her identification of him in court. This practice should have
been prevented. The Appeals Chamber should consider the prosecution’s evidence
identifving Milan Lukic as a perpetrator of the Pionirska Street Incident in the absence of

the evidence of VG013.

VG078 and VG101

153. These witnesses are sisters.”>’ VG101’s evidence was that she went to primarv
school and secondarv school with Milan Lukic during which time she saw him dailv.

After finishine school. she said that she would see Milan Lukic at dances and parties.?®

154. VG078’s evidence was that Milan Lukic was one vear older than her and that she
also went to school with him. She said that she attended school with him for seven vears

259

and would see him there.”” Her evidence was that initiallv she did not recoenise Milan

Lukic. but was “reminded” bv VG101 as to his identitv.*°

155. Even accenting the evidence of VG078’s and VG101’s orior knowledee as true
does not remove the real risk of mistaken recoenition. especiallv as VGO078’s
“recoenition” deoended on the VG101’s “recoenition”. In anv event. if the evidence of
these witnesses was to be accented. there is little added bv in-court identification excent
preiudice to the accused. Thev simplv identified the nerson thev went to school with. but
the indelible image left in the mind of the Chamber is that thev identified a person

involved in the Pionirska Street Incident.

156. In the circumstances of this case. neither VG078 nor VG101 should have been
permitted to identifv Milan Lukic in court. The extent of these witnesses’ brior

knowledee of Milan Lukic was contested.

27 TJ para.331
28 TT para.425
29 TT para.421
260 T7 para.422
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157. The Chamber concluded that VG101 and Milan Lukic went to primarv and

21 The Chamber seriouslv erred in this

secondarv school toeether for 11 vears.

conclusion. VG101’s evidence was that she finished school at the age of 18. therefore in

1987.%%% She said that Milan Lukic was a vear old than her and that thev went to

elementarv school together in Prelovo and secondarv school in Viseerad.*

158. The Chamber ienored defence evidence that Milan Lukic left school in 1985.
Exh.1D105 is the record of his attendance at hieh school in Viseerad. Further. the
Chamber ignored evidence that Milan Lukic did not attend the same primarv school as
VG101. Exh.1D106 is the record demonstratine that his first school was in Klasnik. The

evidence before the Chamber was that he attended that school for four vears. onlv

264

thereafter attending primarv school in Prelovo.”” Further. in relation to the Drina River

Incident. prosecution witness VG014 testified that he attended secondarv school with
Milan Lukic and that he had left school after the second vear.”®® This evidence
demonstrates that VG101 overstated her prior knowledee and therefore Milan Lukic. The
evidence of VGI01’s orior knowledee of Milan Lukic did not remove the risk of
mistaken recoenition. Therefore. she should not have been permitted to identifv Milan

Lukic in court.

159. VGO078’s orior knowledee of Milan Lukic was similarlv limited. Indeed her

evidence was that she was never in the same class as Milan Lukic and that she went to

. . . 266 . . . .
school in Saraievo at times. She cave no evidence of having seen Milan Lukic after
school. The risk of this witness mistakenlv “recognisine” Milan Lukic was sienificant.

Therefore. she should not have been nermitted to identifv him in court.

160. The Appeals Chamber should consider the prosecution’s evidence identifving
Milan Lukic as a oeroetrator of the Pionirska Street Incident in the absence of the

evidence VG078 and VG101.

21 TJ para.425
2271433
2371433
2647 4490
265 TJ.para.129
2611392
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VG115

161. VG115 “occasionallv’ saw Milan Lukic when she would visit her cousin at the
compnanv where VG115 worked and would “regularlv’ encounter him on Pionirska
Street.”®” If this evidence was accented. a positive in-court identification was inevitable.
Again. however. the practice was improver. The Chamber found that VG115 was a
witness prone to exaegeration’® and discounted sienificant parts of her testimonv as
lacking credibilitv.?®® It cannot be proper that such a witness is permitted to identifv an

accused in court thus directlv implicating him in events she was found not to have seen.

SUB-GROUND 3(C): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY FAILING TO APPLY DUE CARE TO
IDENTIFICATION EVIDENCE

162. The Chamber failed to direct itself to the anorooriate standards when assessing
identification evidence in relation to the Pionirska Street Incident. Of particular relevance
to this identification evidence were issues of: purported recognition in traumatic
circumstances. lighting. inconsistent accounts. delaved assertions that Milan Lukic
performed kev acts fundamental to his conviction. and the anprooriate weight to be given

to inconsistent hearsav evidence.

VG013

163. The evidence of VG013 was fundamental to Milan Lukic’s conviction. VG013’s
purported recognition of Milan Lukic is addressed above. The Chamber failed to give anv
consideration to the possibilitv that VG013 had mistakenlv “recognised” Milan Lukic. In

addition. VG013 was the onlv witness who claimed to have seen Milan Lukic opnen the

door to the house and place a “device” with a lichted fuse. which started the fire.>’’ The

271

Chamber considered VG013 to be reliable in this respect.”” This is a bare statement. The

Chamber failed to test this vital evidence against the prover standards. No reasonable

27 TJ.para.429
28 77 para.565
29 7] para.576
21077 para.47

21 TJ.para.608
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Chamber could have simplv accepnted this identification of Milan Lukic as the person
who started the fire. The Chamber failed to consider that from where VG013 was located.

she could not have seen what she claimed to see.

164. Lightine.

272 VG038 testified

that there was no electricitv inside the house.?’

165.  Location. | I

166. The room was crowded and peonle were standing un. VG084 vividlv

described the situation in the room: “It was fullv packed... peonle were cram-packed.”*’®

167. Delaved assertion. Exhibit 1D29 is a statement eiven bv VG013 in 1995. It

contains no mention that she saw Milan Lukic start the fire. Bv contrast. in a statement
oiven in 1998 VG013 said that she saw Sredoie Lukic standine behind Milan Lukic when

he placed the explosive device. The Chamber reiected the evidence of Sredoie Lukic

standine at the door because it was not repeated in court.”’”® An eauallv strict standard

should have been aoplied to VGO013’s delaved assertion that Milan Lukic started the fire.

272 hpy
273

31978

274 1D33.06
75 pe2

276 11256

277 b

278 T7 para.48
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VG078 and VG101

168. The Chamber’s failure to orooerlv consider the risk of mistaken “recognition” bv

these witnesses is addressed above.

Hasib Kursnahic

169. Hasib Kursnahic was a hearsav witness. whose evidence identifving Milan Lukic
was admitted throueh his son. Huso Kurspahic. The Chamber found his identification

) ) o 279
evidence to be reliable despite its hearsav character.

170. Hasib Kurspahic had no orior knowledee of Milan Lukic. Rather. the evidence

was that he was able to identifv him because Mitar Vasilievic addressed him as “Milan”
and a woman said she had eone to school with Milan Lukic.”®” However. the Chamber
held that there was at least one other “Milan” present durine the Pionirska Incident.*®!

Further. identification via the further hearsav evidence of a former schoolmate — most
likelv VG101 — is unreliable. Such a chain of hearsav is an insufficient basis unon which

to nlace weight on Hasib Kurspahic’s “recognition”.

SUB-GROUND 3(D): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT IN ITS ASSESSMENT OF THE
IDENTIFICATION EVIDENCE

171. For the reasons given above. no reasonable Chamber could conclude that Milan
Lukic had been correctlv identified. In particular. no reasonable Chamber having
considered errors in the witnesses’ identification of Mitar Vasilievic. could conclude that

Milan Lukic had been correctlv identified.

29 TJ para.605
20 7y para.435
1 T] para.343
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SUB-GROUND 3(E): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW OR ALTERNATIVELY IN FACT IN ITS
TREATMENT OF EVIDENCE AS TO THE PRESENCE OF MITAR VASILIEVIC

172. Milan Lukic was initiallv indicted toeether with Mitar Vasilievic for the Pionirska
Street Incident.”®* This Tribunal held. in an earlier trial. that Mitar Vasilievic did not

participate in the Pionirska Street Incident in anv wav.”® The Vasilievic Chamber found

that Mitar Vasilievic broke his leg on the afternoon of 14 June 1992 and was admitted to

284
d.

Uzice Hosnital. one hour’s drive from Viseera Notablv. the Office of the Prosecutor

did not anpeal.

173. In the instant case. the Chamber reached the opposite conclusion. The Chamber
held bv maioritv. Judee Robinson dissenting. that Mitar Vasilievic was in fact present on
Pionirska Street at all relevant times.”®* The Chamber’s findine has undermines public
confidence in the iudements of this Tribunal. The Trial Judement in this case is a
collateral attack on the findines of the Trial Judement in Vasilievic. Further. the alleged

presence of Mitar Vasilievic was crucial to the Chamber’s conviction of Milan Lukic. All

of the kev prosecution witnesses claimed that thev saw Mitar Vasilievic and Milan Lukic

together during the Pionirska Street Incident.

A. Error in law in relation to Exhibit 1D39

174. At trial. the defence for Milan Lukic nresented documentarv evidence. consisting
of various records from the Viseerad Health Centre and a case historv from the Uzice
Hospital. This evidence demonstrated that Mitar Vasilievic broke his leg during the
afternoon of 14 June 1992 such that he could not have participated in the Pionirska Street

Incident.

175. Exhibit 1D38 contains various parts of the Uzice Hosnital records demonstrating

Vasilievic’s arrival there from Viseerad Health Centre and subseauent sureerv. In

282 Initial Indictment. 25.1.2000
23 VasilievicT).paras.129-146
24 VasilievicTI.para. 55

85 TJ para.577
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addition. the Chamber took Judicial Notice of Adiudicated Facts as to the veracitv and

286
accuracv of these records.

176. Exhibit 1D39 is the logbook entrv for Viseerad health centre. clearlv marked 14
June 1992. thus corroborating Exhibit 1D38.

177. Exhibit 1D39 was admitted into evidence without translation. The Chamber held

that this was done “inadvertentlv’ and that the lack of translation meant that it would not

attach anv weight to this document.”®’

178. Milan Lukic challenges the Chamber’s anproach. Inadvertence on the part of the
Chamber should not have oreiudiced Milan Lukic. So far as Counsel on anpeal have been
able to determine. the Milan Lukic defence team were not notified of anv difficultv with
Exhibit 1D39. Moreover. the Presidineg Judee was well-aware of the contents and

sienificance of Exhibit 1D39: “I take this opportunitv to clarifv that Exhibit 1D39 onlv

2 »288

comprises nages of the loebook which contain entries of 14th Tune 199 The name

“Mitar Vasilievic” can plainlv be seen on the face of Exhibit 1D39.

179. Further. the Chamber’s approach was inconsistent. Exhibits P68. P165 and P166
were other extracts from the Viseerad health centre logbook. admitted as prosecution
evidence and relied upon bv the Trial Judement as preiudicial to Milan Lukic.”®® These

portions were not translated either.

180. Exhibit 1D39 is sienificant. Counsel for Milan Lukic intends to separatelv file a
translation of this exhibit for Chamber’s consideration. The interests of iustice are served
bv such consideration. eiven that the Chamber’s inadvertence plaved some role in its

findines.

286 Adiudicated Facts Decision.22 Aueust 2008.fact numbers 1-3

7 TJ para.570

88T 2766

29 TT fn.327.See also Exh.P162.admitted without translation bv not relied unon
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181. The sienificance of Exhibit 1D39 is its corroboration of Exhibit 1D38. Had the
maioritv considered Exhibit 1D39. anv doubts as to the weight to be attached to Exhibit
1D38 would have been dispelled.>”

B. Error in fact as to the nresence of Mitar Vasilievic

182. No reasonable Chamber could have found that the presence of Mitar Vasilievic
was established. The Chamber erred bv relving unon a “reasonable inference” that
Exhibit 1D38 was false. This was not the onlv reasonable inference available. as noted

bv Judee Robinson in his dissent:

“no conclusive evidence has been presented to contradict the authenticitv of the

Uzice hospital loehook entrv and the Urzice hospital case historv. While the

evidence of Dr. Rabv mav cast some doubt on their credibilitv. I do not reeard

that as a sufficient basis to reiect them as false. Innocuous factors. including

clerical error in accuratelv identifving Mitar Vasilievic’s 1992 xrav. mav provide
. . 1291

an exnlanation for the findings of Dr. Rabv.

183. Therefore. Milan Lukic should have been given the benefit of other reasonable
inferences consistent with innocence. No reasonable maioritv could have excluded the

reasonable possibilitv noted bv Judee Robinson.

SUB-GROUND 3(F) THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT WHEN ASSESSING THE CREDIBILITY
OF PROSECUTION WITNESSES

184. It is useful to note that the Chamber in the Vasilievic case held that kev

. . . . . . 202
prosecution witnesses who testified in this case were not reliable.

“The Chamber in anv event has serious doubts as to the reliabilitv of the evidence
of the witnesses who claimed to have seen or identified Mitar Vasilievicl... In
exnressing these doubts. the Chamber has assessed the identification evidence of
these witnesses in accordance with the princinles set out earlier. This finding is
lareelv independent of the alibi evidence. but it is verv substantiallv reinforced
bv that alibi evidence.”**’

20 7). para.572

291
TJ.para.1109
2 Vasilievic. TT.para. 148 for VG013.VG038.VG078.VG101: para.153 for VG018.VG084: paras.159-160 for

VG115
3 Vasilievic. T.para.146
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185. The same prosecution witnesses testified in this case and eave evidence that thev

saw Mitar Vasilievic toeether with Milan Lukic.

186. VG013 eave evidence that he knew Mitar Vasilievic.?”* The Chamber accented

. . 1. . 205
that he “recognised” Mitar Vasilievic.

187. VGI101’s evidence was that she knew Mitar Vasilievic and that she recoegnised

him “immediatelv”’.>’® The Chamber accented that she “recoenised” Mitar Vasilievic.>”’

1ss. |
_298 The Chamber accented that she “recognised” Mitar

ce . 299
Vasilievic.

189. Huso Kurspahic’s evidence suggested that his father knew Mitar Vasilievic
personallv for around 20 vears.>* The Chamber abparentlv accepted that this hearsav

. . . re . . . . 301
witness “recognised”’ Mitar Vasilievic durine the Pionirska Street Incident.

190. As held bv the Chamber in Vasilievic. the evidence of kev prosecution witnesses
that thev “recognised” Mitar Vasilievic could not possiblv be true. If these witnesses
were mistaken in their aoparentlv comvpelling “recogenition” of Mitar Vasilievic. it

follows that their “recognition” of Milan Lukic is undermined.

SUB-GROUND 3(G): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY REVERSING THE BURDEN OF
PROOF ON ALIBI

191. The iurisprudence of the two ad hoc tribunals on alibi is well established and
could be summarized in that the accused has no oblieation to prove his oroffered alibi

bevond reasonable doubt.

24T .1029.2D8.T.1432-1433
295 T paras.360.368.441-442
26T 1431

27 TT para.360.445

28 pg8 n.5

299 T7 para.360.444

300 p37.T.791-792

301 TJ para.360.446
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192. Milan Lukic’s alibi was that along with other members from the reserve police he
was deoloved to Kobito between 13-15 June 1992. Rather than consider whether Milan
Lukic’s alibi was reasonablv possiblv true. the Chamber considered whether the alibi had
been proved bevond reasonable doubt. The following wordineg demonstrates the

Chamber’s erroneous anporoach.

a. While assessing Goran Deric’s evidence the Chamber found that “it annears odd.
to sav the least. that the Roeatica Brigade. |...1. would not have mentioned in I...1
combat reports that the road had become blocked. *** 1t went on savine that “I7 is
reasonable to expvect that had this road I...1 been blocked it would have been

. 303
renorted in the [...1 renorts”.

b. Aegain. while assessine MLD4’s evidence. the Chamber found that it was

“difficult to believe’"* in its entiretv.

193. This wordine suggests that the Chamber reversed the burden of nroof.

194. In addition. the Chamber reversed the burden of proof because it did not meet the
standards of due care when assessing the alibi evidence and reiected the testimonies of

the kev alibi witnesses based on contradictions on non-material issues.’”> MLD7 and
MLD4 could not agree upon when thev first saw commander Trifkovic for the first time.
ie outside the Bikavac hotel or at Konito. However. both witnesses put Milan Lukic at a

place other than Pionirska Street on the relevant date.

SUB-GROUND 3(H): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT WHEN HOLDING THAT MILAN
LUKIC’S ALIBI WAS NOT REASONABLY POSSIBLY TRUE

195. The Chamber did not meet the standard of due care when assessing the alibi

evidence. The following witnesses testified in support of Milan Lukic’s alibi: MLD4.

302 7Y para.623

303 7Y para.623

304 7Y para.626

395 M1.D7 and MLD4 could eave a different version of when thev first saw commander Trifkovic for the first time.
ie outside the Bikavac hotel or at Kopito
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MLD7. Goran Deric and MLD24. Ferid Spahic. VG136. VG089 and Mirsada Kahriman

testified as alibi rebuttal witnesses.

196. The Chamber erred in fact when assessing the alibi evidence in the following

aspoects.

197. First. the Chamber anolied double standards in its assessment of the alibi evidence
presented bv the Prosecution and the defence. It used parts of testimonies of “discredited”

witnesses to contradict parts of the testimonies of other witnesses. This is particularlv the

case of witnesses MLD4 and MLD7.

198. MILD7 testified that he first saw commander Trifkovic outside the Bikavac hotel
prior to the troons’ departure towards Kopito on the 13 June 1992.2° MLD4 testified that

he first saw commander Trifkovic in Kopito.>*” The Chamber found that the evidence

provided bv MLD7 in this respect was more credible than the evidence orovided bv

MLD4.>%® Moreover. the fact that MLD7 had prior knowledee of Trifkovic meant his

300 . . . .
This issue was peripheral to Milan Lukic’s

alibi point and not “fundamental to the inteeritv of the alibi as a whole”.>'°

evidence was oreferred to that of MLLD4.

199. Secondlv. Goran Deric’s testimonv was “discredited” because it was contradicted
bv the militarv reports that did not mention anv clearing operation taking place. Deric
testified that the reason he was in Konito was that the road was blocked and he had to
clean it un. He agreed that this oneration did not fieure in the Rogatica brigade’s reports.

but explained that this omission was normal. since the operation took place outside the

311

Brigade’s overation. The Chamber erroneouslv characterized the inconsistencies

3% T para.619
397 T para.619
398 T para.620
399 TJ.para.620
319 7Y para.620
311 TY para.623

CASE No. IT-98-32/1-A 17 MARCH 2010 Pe. 55
PROSECUTOR VS. LUKIC AND LUKIC MILAN LUKIC’S APPEAL BRIEF



1800

between his testimonv and the reports as “unexnlained”.>'> The Chamber held that these

. . . . . o e1e. 313
discrepancies undermined his entire credibilitv.

200. Thirdlv. MLLD24’s evidence was disbelieved because he did not know about

incidents in Koboito whilst his wife and Milan Lukic’s parents were aware that the

operation took place.’'* However. MLLD24’s evidence that Milan Lukic’s parents did not

leave Ruiiste durine the first half of June 1992 was taken into account bv the Chamber to

discredit the five alibi witnesses for the Drina and Varda incidents.’'> Moreover. the fact
that his evidence was hearsav was used to discredit him. unlike the aoproach of the

Chamber to prosecution hearsav evidence.

201. Fourthlv. none of the alibi rebuttal witnesses had sufficient orior knowledee to

recoenise Milan Lukic on the dates thev claimed to see him. Ferid Spahic did not have

prior knowledee of Milan Lukic at all. His knowledee was based on hearsav evidence'®.

VG136 had no orior knowledee of Milan Lukic either and onlv found out his name when

Ferid Snahic (who for his part testified that he did not know who the man was until other

people told him so) told her the name.*'’

202. Fifthlv. the VG089 could not recall the orecise dates of the events he testified

about occurred. but desnite these inconsistencies. the Chamber concluded that his

evidence showed that Milan Lukic was in Viseerad.”'®

203. For all these reasons the Chamber reversed the burden of oroof and erroneouslv

held that Milan Lukic’s alibi was not reasonablv possiblv true.

312 T para.622

313 TJ para.623

314 TT para.625-626

315 TT para.226

3167 529-530.P15.T.368-369.P21 n.3(Esad Kustura told him who the man was)
17T .6803.6816-6817

318 TT para.628
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SUB-GROUNDS 3(I//4(H): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW AND/OR FACT IN HOLDING
THAT THE CRIME OF EXTERMINATION WAS ESTABLISHED

A. Introduction

204. The maioritv. Judee Van den Wvneaert dissenting. entered a separate conviction

for extermination in relation to each of the Pionirska Street and Bikavac Incidents.®>'’ Due
to the limited space available and the related nature of the errors in the maioritv’s
reasoning in relation to each crime site. Milan Lukic’s submissions under Sub-erounds

3(D) and 4(H) have been combined.

205. Milan Lukic contends that the Chamber erred in law or alternativelv in fact in its
characterisation of the necessarv element of “massiveness” in order for a conviction for

extermination to be available.

206. The maioritv described the element of “massiveness” thus:

“An assessment of whether this element is met must be made on a case-bv-case
basis. taking account of all the relevant factors. It has. for example. been held that
the actus reus of extermination mav _be established on the basis of “an
accumulation_of separate _and unrelated incidents. meaning on_an_aggregate
basis.” Another factor in_ the maioritv’s view. Judee Van den Wvneaert
dissenting. is the pooulation densitv of the particular area. In other words. while
there mav _be a higher threshold for a finding of extermination in a denselv-
povulated area. it would not be inapprooriate to find extermination in_a less

denselv-nonulated area on the basis of a lower threshold. that is. fewer
1320

victimes.

207. The Chamber apnolied its standard and found that “massiveness” was established

in relation to each site.

208. In relation to the Pionirska Street Incident. the maioritv relied on “the number and

tvpe of victims of the fire. the area from which thev came. and the manner in which the

319 TT paras.947.951.1100
320 77 para.938

1799
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fire was prenared in the context of the other events that took lace on 14 June 1992 3%

The maioritv “particularlv considered the characteristics of the nlace where the victims

322
came from.”

209. In relation to the Bikavac Incident. the maioritv relied on “the manner in which ...

house was nrenared. the Muslim victims were herded into the house [andl the number

and tvpe of victims of the fire.*>

B. The maioritv erred bv relving on nonulation densitv and characteristics of victims in
assessing massiveness

210. Numerous difficulties arise with the maioritv’s assessment of “massiveness”.

211. First. the pnlain meaning of “massiveness” refers to the number of victims. not

2324,

their character. “Massiveness” has been referred to as “mass killing “mass

99 326 « 59 327 95328

. 325 1 eq71- .
destruction”.””” killing on a “massive”. vast”.””" or “large scale.

212. Secondlv. reliance on pooulation densitv introduces a highlv subiective element
into the crime of extermination. Pooulation densitv is entirelv dependent unon the
reference area chosen. This anproach is bound to lead to uncertaintv in the law. As Judee
Van den Wvneaert observed in dissent. the maioritv’s anoroach leads to a leeallv
untenable result: the killine of 20 peonle in a small village is found to constitute
extermination. but the killing of thousands of peonle in a laree citv is not. Further. the

maioritv’s anproach means that the crime of extermination mav be established in relation

.. ) .. 329
to some victims. depending on their origin. but not others.

321 TJ para.942

322 TJ para.945

32 TJ.para.949

34 Blagoievic.T1.nara.571

325 Ntakirutimana.Al.para.516

3% Blagoievic.TI.para.573

327 Vasilievic.T).para.224

38 Blagoievic.TI.para.573:Stakic. AJ.para.259

329 TT para.1118(Judee Van den Wvneaert.Dissenting)
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213. It is notable that when assessine the crime of extermination the ICTY has never

chosen a reference area smaller than a municipalitv.”®® The Chamber’s identification of
(1) the village of Koritnik in relation to the Pionirska Street Incident: and (ii) the Bikavac
neiehbourhood in Viseerad. was artificial and narrow. Further. the maioritv ignored the
fact that the victims did not all come from the reference areas it selected: seven victims

from the Pionirska Street Incident were from Sase rather than Koritnik. and manv of the

331

Bikavac Incident victims were from different villages in Viseerad municipalitv. In

these circumstances. the deaths of 59 and 60 respectivelv cannot be considered

. . . . . . .3
sufficientlv “massive” so as to establish the crime of extermination.

214. Thirdlv. the maioritv was inconsistent in its annroach. Whereas in relation to the

Pionirska Street Incident thev focused primarilv on the place where the victims came

3

from>>. no such detailed analvsis was conducted for the Bikavac Incident. There. the

Chamber focused on the “fvne of victims” including their vulnerability.>**

215. Fourthlv. considering the “tvme of victims” bv their vulnerabilitv is of little
assistance. On one analvsis. all victims are vulnerable. Describing victims as vulnerable

savs nothing about the crime of extermination and does not differentiate it from murder.

C. The maioritv erred in its interonretation of the law related to chareineg of the crime of
extermination on an agsgeregate basis.

216. In determinine whether the element of “massiveness” was satisfied. the maioritv

. . 335
referred to “an accumulation of senarate and unrelated incidents” as a relevant factor.

The Chamber erred in this anoroach because Milan Lukic was chareed with separate

counts which should not have been accumulated.

330 Stakic TJ.vara.654 (Priiedor):Brdanin.TJ.vara.16( ARK municipalities): Blogoievic.T).vara.577:KrsticTJ.para.505
(Srebrenica): Kraiisnik.TJ.nara.717(describing incidents bv municinalitv).

3! T.para.1127

32 TJ.para.1127

3 TJ.para.945

34 TJ para.949

33 7] para.938
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217. Therefore. the maioritv’s reliance unon Kraiisnik. where the accused was

convicted of extermination for the Pionirska Street Incident. among others. was

. 336 . . . .. . . .
misplaced. Unlike Milan Lukic. Kraiisnik faced one count of extermination for
numerous sites such that the element of “massiveness” was satisfied on the basis of

accumulation.

218. Cruciallv. the consideration of “all relevant factors” in the iurisprudence does not
. . . 337 . .

displace the reauirement of “massiveness” "". The aporoach of the maioritv was to select

factors from cases where extermination was chareed on an accumulated basis in order to

dilute the reauirement of “massiveness” in this case.

D. The maioritv erred in fact when holding that “massiveness’ was established

219. The maioritv erred in fact in its assessment that the death of 59 peonle in the

Pionirska Street Incident™® and 60 people in the Bikavac Incident™® satisfied the

element of “massiveness’.

220. While there is no numerical minimum for the crime of extermination*. this does
not mean that the number of victims can be small. This is not to downplav the
sienificance of the deaths of around 120 peonple alleged in two separate incidents. Rather
it reflects the seriousness inherent in anv conviction for murder on this scale. The

“massiveness”’ of the killing is the onlv material element that reflects the eravitv of the

. . . . 341
crime of extermination and separates it from murder.

221. Anv determination of the number of victims which satisfies the reauirement of

“massiveness” should accord with the orevious practice of this Tribunal

336 TJ para.938

37 TJ para.938

338 T7 para.941

339 TJ para.949

30 TJ.para.1117.citine Brdanin.AJ.para.471:Staki¢ AJ.para.260-261:Ntakirutimana AJ.para.516:Blagoievié and
Joki¢. TJ.vara.573

3 TJ para.1115
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222. Most convictions entered for extermination have involved officials found euiltv
on the basis of joint criminal enterprise liabilitv or aiding and abetting for thousands of
victims and for crimes committed over extensive periods of time and at various locations.
In those cases where the individual crimes did not rise to the necessarv amount. the
crimes were aggregated. The following Table summarises the previous practice of this

Tribunal:

Case Form of Liabilitv Acgereegate or Not | Number of Victims
Blagoievic and Aiding and Abetting™ "~ No~ 7000
., 342
Jokic
347

Brdanin 345 Not Guiltv346 Yes 1669348

Krstic™?’ Aiding and Abetting™" No 7000-8000°°
353

Kraiisnik JCE Yes 2 3000

Stakic>* JCE™ Yes 0 15007

Kavishema and Command Responsibilitv+Direct No thousands~>

T

. 358
Ruzindana

Musema-2° Command Responsibilitv+Aiding No thousands-°!
and Abetting+Direct

Ndindahahizi362 Instieatine. Aidine and Abetting363 No thousands%4
Ntakirutimana - Aidine and Abetting+Direct No thousands

66 . - . . 367 368
Aiding and Abetting+Direct No thousands

3
Rutaganda

32 Blagoievic and Jokic. TY.naras.570-577

33 Blagoievic and Jokic.TJ.para.860

34 Blagoievic and Jokic.TY.para.577

35 Brdanin.TJ.vara.465:Brdanin. AJ.paras.471-472

3 Brdanin.AJ.para.497

37 Brdanin.TJ.para.465:Brdanin.AJ.para.472

348 each killine resulted in deaths of between 68 and 300 victims
349 Krstié TT.para.505

30 Krstié. AT.0.86

31 Krstié. TJ. paras.79.84.426.

32 Kraiisnik.T).para. 717

333 Kraiisnik T).para. 717

3% Stakié. T paras.653-654:Stakié. A .paras.90.229

35 Stakic.AJ.para.229.264

36 Stakic.TJ.para.654

37 Stakic. T).para.654

38 Kavishema and Ruzindana.T).paras.471.577

39 Kavishema and Ruzindana.T).paras.353.402.406.471
30 Musema.T).paras.309-310.363.403.679.695.747.750.768.780.945.949.951.1002
31 Musema. TT.naras.362-796

32 Ndindabahizi.TJ. paras 460.483

393 Ndindabahizi. TY.nara.485

3% Ndindabahizi.T].nara.460

395 Ntakirutimana.AJ.para.521

3 Rutaeanda.TJ.paras.299.300-301.416

37 Rutaeanda. TY.vara.416
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| Seromba™®’ | Aidine and Abetting” " | No | 1500°"" |

223. In Martic the accused found not euiltv of extermination on the basis of the death

of 165 victims.?”> The Chamber held that “the evidence is insufficient to establish that the

crime of extermination was committed on an accumulated basis ... the element that the

,,373

killings be committed on large scale has not been met. Even when accumulated. the

. . . 374
number did not meet the reauirement of “massiveness”.”’” The Appeals Chamber should
adont the same aoproach in this case and reverse Milan Lukic’s convictions for

extermination.

224. Both the ICTY and ICTR have ensured that the element of “massiveness” is

maintained at a high level bv:

. . C 375
a. ageoregating multinle incidents:

b. holdine that the crime of extermination almost necessarilv must be of such a scale
of killine as to be prohibitive to identifvine. naming or countine the victims with
specificitv:>°

c. holdine that the killine must be of such scale as to reauire ‘a substantial deeree of

.. . 377
oreganization and preparation’.

225. Both ICTY and ICTR have held that “massiveness” is tied to the chaneau

elements of crimes against humanitv. In Ntakirutimana. the Appeals Chamber held that:

“the crime of extermination reauires proof that the accused particinated in a
widespread or svstematic killineg or in subiectine a widespread number of peonle
or svstematicallv subiecting a number of neonle to conditions of livine that would
inevitablv lead to death. and that the accused intended bv his acts or omissions

38 thousands of neonle were killed at the massacre at ETO and the massacre of ETO survivors at Nvanza school

39 Seromba.TJ.varas.364-365:Seromba. AJ.paras.190.206

310 Seromba.TJ.para.311

3 Seromba.TJ.nara.365:1.500 people were killed at Nvanee Church

2 Marti¢. TJ.paras.404-405.354.359.364-365.368.371-372.379.386-389

33 Martic. TJ.para.404

3% Martic. TJ.para.405

375 Akavesu.T1.para.744:Stakic. T].para.876:Krstic. T).para.504:Semanza.T].para.461

376 TJ.para.1115: Ntakirutimana.AJ.paras.518.521

37 Krstic. TY.vara.501:Stakic. TJ.vara.640
CASE No. IT-98-32/1-A 17 MARCH 2010 Pe. 62
PROSECUTOR VS. LUKIC AND LUKIC MILAN LUKIC’S APPEAL BRIEF



1793

this result.”>"®
226. The Appeals Chamber in Stakic adooted the same abproach.””’
2217. For all these reasons. Milan Lukic’s convictions for extermination should be

reversed.

FOURTH GROUND: THE BIKAVAC INCIDENT

SUB-GROUND 4(A): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY APPLYING THE WRONG LEGAL
AND EVIDENTIARY STANDARD TO ALL THE CRIMES ALLEGED BY THE BIKAVAC
INCIDENT

228. The Chamber erred in its finding that 60 individuals died in Meho Aliic’s house in
Bikavac because the death of these individuals was not proven bevond reasonable doubt.

The Indictment alleged that 70 people were killed at Bikavac.*®” Of those 70. 16 are listed

381

in Annex B to the Indictment.”” Of those 16 individuals onlv 9 are identified bv their

382

first name and surname and their date of birth.”” From those 9 peonle the names of the

. . 1383
two chaneed during trial.

229. The Chamber concluded that 60 peoole in total have died in the fire. including the

following 11 individuals identified bv name. No death certificates or anv other evidence

was given for anv of these victims.’®* The determination that these people died was on

the basis of the information provided bv Ewa Tabeau. stating these people are still

missine. and oral evidence of witnesses Zehra Turiadanin. VG115 and VG058°%. all

lackine credibilitv.

38 Ntakirutimana.AJ.vara.522. Bagosora et al. TY.para.28. Gacumbitsi.AJ.para.86

37 Stakic AJ.para.259:Krstic.T).para.501

380 7T para.662

38! Indictment of 27.02.2006. Annex B

382 See infra table.

383 The person listed as Sada Turiacanin was chaneed to Sadheta Turiacanin after Ewa Tabeau clarified that duringe
her testimonv (24 March 2009. T.6198-6201) and the name of Mirzeta Vilic was chaneed to Zihneta Vilic after
Hamdiia Vilic eave the relevant information (11 November 2008. T.3456)

34 TT. para.663

385 TJ para.663
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230. Ewa Tabeau’s evidence onlv tended to show that peoole are missing and could not

replace death certificates.*®°

231. There is serious doubt that alleged victims ever existed because thev had no personal

identification number (JMBG number’®)). their bodv was never found and no death

certificate was nroduced.

Alleged Victim

Reasons whv the prosecution failed to meet its legal
and evidentiarv burden

Aliic. first name unknown.
father of Suhra Aliic.
anpproximatelv 65 vears old

Insufficient identification in the indictment
No bodv

No death certificate

No JMBG number>®®

Aliic. first name unknown.

Insufficient identification in the indictment

mother of Suhra Aliic. e No bodv
anpproximatelv 65 vears old e No death certificate
e No JMBG number’®
Aliic. first name unknown. e Insufficient identification in the indictment
son of Suhra Aliic e No bodv

No death certificate
No JMBG number”°

Suhra Aliic. approximatelv
25 vears old

No bodv
No death certificate
No JMBG number™"

Dehva Tufekcic. e No bodv
approximatelv 28 vears e No death certificate
old. e No JMBG number’”?
e Zehra Turzacanin described a certain Dzehva
Tufekcic*®>. who is a different person
Elma Tufekcic. e No bodv
anpproximatelv 5 vears old. e No death certificate
e No JMBG number’”™

380 Cf 1.0.663

387 T.6670-6671 According to the evidence provided bv Stoia Vuiicic. the JMBG number was given to everv
individual born after 1980 when the relevant law came into force. All individuals born before 1980 would eet a
JMBG number retroactivelv and it is not possible for two individuals to eet the same JMBG number.

38 1D221.1D220.1D233
39 1D221.1D220.1D233
30 1D221.1D220.1D233
¥11D221.1D220.1D233
32 1D221.1D220.1D233
39372299. 2303. 2313

34 1D221.1D220.1D233
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Ensar Tufekcic e No bodv
approximatelv 1.5 vears e No death certificate
old e No JMBG number™”

e P119 refers to Emsar Tufekcic*®® which is
definitelv a different name than Ensar

Selmir Turiacanin. e No bodv
approximatelv 9 vears old e No death certificate
e No JMBG number’”’
Dulka Turiacanin. e No bodv
anpproximatelv 51 vears old e No death certificate’

e Dulka Turiacanin is still alive. The defence
reauested that the Chamber abpoint an
indenendent law enforcement agencv to
investieate the possibilitv of additional

survivors>® but the Chamber denied the

re(]uest.399
Sada Turiacanin. e No bodv
anproximatelv 29 vears old e No death certificate

e The archives of BiH show this person was
alive after 1992 because she has been
registered in the new CIPS database with

permanent address in Saraievo.*” The CIPS
agencv beean to work on 27 October 2003.4!
Aida Turiacanin e No bodv

e No death certificate

e No JMBG number.*"?

232. No reasonable Chamber could conclude that the remaining victims died in the Bikavac
Incident. The lack of identification in the Indictment means that the exact number of

these persons could not be challenged. Secondlv. Amor Masovié. testified that a 311
bodies were exhumed from 67 locations in Viseerad Municipalitv.**> None of these

bodies were linked to the Bikavac fire.*** Defence expert Cliff testified that “/r]egardless

3% 1D221.1D220.1D233

3% P139.0.20

37 1D221.1D220.1D233

38 Milan Lukic’s Notice of Verification of Allesed Victim Survivors and Avvlication for Stav of Proceedines with
Exhibits A-H. 09.03.2009

399 Chamber’s Decision on Milan Lukic’s Notice of Verification of Alleged Victim Survivors and Avplication for Stav
of Proceedines with Exhibits A-H. 12.03.2009

40 1D220

T T6669

42 1D221.1D220.1D233

4037.3182-3183.P183.P174

4047 .3185-3186
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of how intense the fire is. not all the bodv parts will burn of all of the victims.”*®> He

testified that should 60 peonle have been burned in Aliic's house. there would be trace

. . .1 406
evidence in the soil.

233. Therefore. in the absence of anv forensic evidence. death certificates or anv other
credible proof of death. no reasonable Chamber could conclude that the 60 persons

identified actuallv died in the Bikavac Incident.

SUB-GROUND 4(B): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY PERMITTING IN-COURT
IDENTIFICATIONS

234. The Chamber erred in law bv permitting the in-court identification of Milan Lukic bv
alleeed witnesses to the Bikavac Incident. Three prosecution witnesses testified that thev
were direct evewitnesses to the Bikavac Incident: Zehra Turiacanin. VG058 and

VG115.*7 The Chamber permitted the prosecution to attemnt in-court identifications

408

with all of them.™" In addition. two prosecution witnesses nlaced Milan Lukic near Meho

Alic’s house shortlv before and immediatelv after the house burning: VG119 and
VG094.*” The Chamber permitted in-court identifications of Milan Lukic bv both of

these witnesses.*'® Finallv. VG035 placed Milan Lukic near Meho Alic’s house a few

411

hours before the house-burnineg. between 4 and Som. Acain. the Chamber permitted

this witness to identifv Milan Lukic in court.*'?

235.  Milan Lukic’s identitv as a nerpetrator of the Bikavac Incident was disputed at Trial.
Counsel for Milan Lukic obiected to this procedure on everv occasion.*'? The Chamber
permitted in-court identifications to be nerformed without anv discernible consideration
of the particular circumstances of each witness. The evidence of these witnesses and their

purported recognition of Milan Lukic as a perpetrator is undermined bv the preiudice

45T 6477

400716477

47T TJ para.716

408 Bor Zehra Turiacanin: TJ. para. 671 (as discussed below. she did not identifv Milan Lukic): for VG058: T1I. para.
673: for VG115: TJ. paras.433.675&fn 2260

4 TJ para.716

#10VG119: TJ.para.685: VG094:TJ.para.683.

4 TT. para.716

12 7] para.707

437 7006-VG094: T.1582-VG058: T.1689-VG035

CASE No. IT-98-32/1-A 17 MARCH 2010 Pe. 66
PROSECUTOR VS. LUKIC AND LUKIC MILAN LUKIC’S APPEAL BRIEF



1789

caused bv their “recogenition” of Milan Lukic in the court room. If the nrosecution wished
to bolster its evidence identifving Milan Lukic. it should have tried to do so bv means of

an out-of-court nrocedure.

236. The prosecution’s main witness for the Bikavac Incident was Zehra Turiacanin. alleced
to be the sole survivor of the fire. When asked. this witness did not recognise Milan

414 The Chamber. without explanation. placed “little weight” on her

Lukic in court.
inabilitv to recoenise Milan Lukic.*'> The Chamber held that it was satisfied that Zehra
Turiacanin “had sufficient nrior knowledgee of Milan Lukic to identifv him correctlv’ in

her testimonv.

237. Such an anoroach is uniustifiable. If this witness was unable to recoenise Milan Lukic in
court. when the circumstances consnire heavilv in favour of a positive identification. no
weight should be placed on her testimonv identifving Milan Lukic as a perpetrator of the
alleged crime. If the Chamber was to permit in-court identifications. there must be
implications when a witness did not recoenise Milan Lukic. The Appeals Chamber
should correct the Chamber’s error bv considering the identification of Milan Lukic in

the absence of the evidence of Zehra Turiacanin.

238. As mentioned above. the other two direct evewitnesses to the Bikavac Incident — VG058

and VG115 — both identified Milan Lukic in court.

239. VGO058’s evidence was that Milan Lukic was her neighbour and that she saw him almost

416 . . .. . . . .
If this evidence was accepted. then a positive in-court identification was

everv dav.
inevitable. In the circumstances of this case. however. the practice was improoer. Milan
Lukic’s identitv as the perpetrator was contested. In such circumstances. little is added bv
VGO058’s positive in-court identification excent oreiudice. It cannot be assumed that
professional iudees are able to separate out the impact of such an identification. For

instance. it is notable that the Chamber held that the evidence of VG058 “did not stand

414 TJ.para.671
415

TI.para.724
416 TJ.para.672
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un well under cross examination” and that she was “verv evasive” in her answers when
. 417 . .
cross-examined. Nonetheless. without explanation. the Chamber nroceeded to place

sienificant weight on the evidence of VG058.*'®

240). VG115 “occasionallv’ saw Milan Lukic when he would visit his cousin at the companv

where VG115 worked and would “reeularly”’ encounter him on Pionirska Street.*'” If this
evidence was accepted. then a positive in-court identification was inevitable. Aegain.

however. the practice was improoer. As with VG058. the Chamber held that the evidence

420

of VG115 did not stand up to cross examination.”” The Chamber repeated its mistake bv

placing sienificant weight on the evidence of VG115.4*! Such reasonine alludes to the

preiudice caused bv permitting in-court identifications.

241. While the evidence of VG094 and VG119 did not eo directlv to Milan Lukic’s conduct.

in-court identifications bv these witnesses should not have been pnermitted. VG(094’s

evidence was that she was raped bv Milan Lukic on 29 Mav 1992.**? She said that she

had not personallv known Milan Lukic. but “recognised” him from the descrintion and

stories she had heard from others. | NN

424 .. . . . .
I To permit in-court identification in

such circumstances was undulv oreiudicial.

242. Witness VG119’s evidence was that she was “obsessed bv Milan Lukic” since he had
taken awav her husband.*”® VG119’s said she did not know Milan Lukic personallv. but

her husband did and had told her his name.**® Accordine to VG119. Milan Lukic had

417 TJ para.718

48 TY para.717

41977 para.429

420 TT.para.718

1 T para.717

422 TJ paras.678.721.
423 TJ.para.677

424 p335.para.18

425 TJ para. 682

426 TJI para.677
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robbed her and her husband at eunooint on 29 Mav 1992. after which he took her

husband and father and law “for auestioning at the SUP” from which thev did not

return.*”” Bv permitting an in-court identification on the basis of such limited familiaritv

the Chamber erred in law.

VGO035’s in-court identification of Milan Lukic is addressed below in relation to the

Killing of Haira Koric.

SUB-GROUND 4(C): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY FAILING TO APPLY DUE CARE TO
IDENTIFICATION EVIDENCE

244.

The Chamber failed to direct itself to the particular care and standards necessarv when
assessing identification evidence. Of particular relevance to this identification evidence
were issues of: purported recoenition. inconsistent accounts. liehtine. delaved assertions
of Milan Lukic’s involvement. and the impact of traumatic events on the likelihood of

accurate identification.

Zehra Turiacanin

245.

246.

As noted above. despite Zehra Turiacanin’s purported orior knowledee of Milan Lukic
and recognition of him as someone who tried to kill her. she was unable to identifv him in
court. Had the Chamber directed itself to the orover standards when assessing
identification evidence. it would have placed sienificant weight on her inabilitv to

recognise Milan Lukic.

428

427 TJ para. 678

428 2D36.0.1
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248.

249.

250.

251.

Therefore. a kev issue was whether she had indeed recoenised Milan Lukic or rather

implicated him — consciouslv or subconsciouslv — on the basis of anparent notorietv.

The Trial Judement omits critical analvsis of Zehra Turiacanin’s “recognition” of Milan

Lukic.

Her evidence was that she went to secondarv school with Milan Lukic. who was in the

same class as her brother. Her evidence was that once a week during breaks between

classes she would see Milan Lukic smoking behind the school. where she also smoked.*?

At trial. the defence for Milan Lukic contested whether Zehra Turiacanin had attended

the same school as Milan Lukic at the same time. Exhibit 1D105 was Milan Lukic’s

record from the school in auestion. indicating that he commenced studies there on 1
Sentember 1982. Exhibit 1D82 was confirmation that Zehra Turiacanin’s final vear at
that school was “1981/2”. Therefore. the evidence demonstrated that thev did not attend
the same school during the same academic vear. In failing to anolv due care. the Chamber

concluded that the school records “do not cast doubt on her evidence that she attended

the same school as Milan Lukic”.**® The Chamber failed to abpreciate the point that the

issue was not the identitv of the school attended. but the time-period attended.

The Chamber’s failure to rieorouslv assess the evidence of Zehra Turiacanin’s orior

knowledee of Milan Lukic led it into further error. Her brother eave a statement that “/

b

know that Zehra did not know Milan Lukic before the war”.*>' When put to the witness in
cross-examination. she confirmed that there was never a time when she and her brother
were together and saw Milan Lukic.**? She failed to answer the fundamental challenge

that she did not know Milan Lukic before the war. The Chamber failed to aboreciate the

429 TT para.668

B0 TT. para.706

1 1D84.p. 2.TT.para.688

4327 .3335:3351:3351: TJ para 688
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significance of this point and. without explanation or iustification. eave “no weight to the

. . 5 433
statements of Dzevad Turiacanin’.

252. In anv event. the Chamber failed to consider that purnorted prior knowledee in 1982 is
scant basis unon which to establish recognition. in traumatic circumstances. ten vears

later.

253. The remainine basis for Zehra Turiacanin’s “recognition” of Milan Lukic was that she

saw him on two occasions in June 1992. First. she saw him when she was drinkine coffee

at her neighbour’s house when Milan Lukic came to that house.** Secondlv. while he
was looking for a woman who worke at the factorv “Alhos” where she worked as a

seamstress.

254. In relation to the first sightine. the man she ‘“recognised” as Milan Lukic did not

435
f.

introduce himsel Moreover. this ‘“recoenition” depended upon orior knowledee

which as shown above simplv did not exist.

25s. |+ s alleeed that

she was raned bv Milan Lukic on 27 June 19927 However. her evidence was that she

worked at an entirelv different companv: TMP. Elpin. fixine eas tanks.**® Moreover. her

evidence was that the first time she ever saw Milan Lukic was in the street on 26 June

1992:

17 O. Now. to 2o to the beginning of vour testimonv. it's mv
18 understandine that the first time that vou came to understand or know
who
19 vou believe Milan Lukic to be was that dav of the 26th when vou saw
him
20 talkine to a voung Serbian bov. Is that true?

433 TJ.para.706

43477 para. 669

572295,

436 2)D38.p.2.para. 1

47 TJ para.695

BT 1648
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21 A. Yes.*’

256. The Chamber’s failure to anolv prooer care to Zehra Turiacanin’s claim to recognise

Milan Lukic meant that it missed crucial nieces of evidence like this.

257.  Therefore. the real risk exists that the man Zehra Turiacanin “recogenised” on the dav of
the Bikavac Incident was not Milan Lukic. Had the Chamber aoolied the prooer
standards. in particular her failure to recognise Milan Lukic when in plain view before
her in court. it could not have concluded that her evidence imnlicated Milan Lukic in the

Bikavac Incident.

Witness VG058

258.  The Chamber was satisfied that this witness had enough knowledee to recognise Milan
Lukic.**" Given that her evidence was that she met Milan Lukic “almost everv dav”. that
would seem to be true. Cruciallv. however. an abilitv to recoenise does not remove either
the risk of a mistaken recognition or a subseauent subconscious recollection that Milan
Lukic was there when in fact he was not. The Trial Judement fails to scrutinise these

possibilities.

259.  Exhibit 1D40 is VG058’s first witness statement given on 25 Julv 1992. This statement
contains no _mention of Milan Lukic. indeed no mention of the Bikavac Incident at all.
Given the oroximitv of the date of this statement to the alleeced date of the Bikavac
Incident. this witness’ failure to mention the fire. indeed her failure to mention Milan
Lukic in anv context. cannot be explained awav. as the Trial Judement seeks to do. bv her
accounts of the fire and Milan Lukic in 2000. 2002 and 2008.*"' Further. the Chamber
noted that VG058 was “evasive in her answers” in relation to such inconsistencv. but

. . . . 442
failed to eive anv weieht to such evasiveness.

71693

40T para.718

41 T] paras.644.673
42 TJ paras.673.718
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260. Exhibit 1D41 is a statement VG058 gcave in 2000 and Exhibit 1D43 a statement she

egave in 2008. In her 2008 statement she described Milan Lukic as wearine a stocking or

balaclava over his head. but asserted that she “recognised” him bv his voice.**> In her

testimonv. VG058 asserted that she saw a man wearing a stocking over his head force
. . . . e . 444
Muslins into the house and she recoenised that man to be Mitar Vasilievic.”~ However.

in 2000. VG058 had been unable to recoenise Mitar Vasilievic.**

261. These discrenancies are fundamental to the veracitv of VGO058’s assertion that she
“recognised” Milan Lukic durine the Bikavac Incident. The Chamber’s failure to aoolv
the necessarv standards when assessing identification evidence led it to erroneouslv place

weight unon VGO058’s “recognition” of Milan Lukic.

Witness VG115

262. The Chamber was satisfied that this witness had enoueh knowledee to recoenise Milan

Lukic.**® Given that her evidence was that she “recularlv encountered” Milan Lukic on
Pionirska Street. that would seem to be true. Cruciallv. however. an abilitv to recognise
does not remove either the risk of a mistaken recognition or a subseauent subconscious
recollection that Milan Lukic was there when in fact he was not. The Trial Judement fails

to scrutinise these possibilities.

263. Durine the Vasilievic Trial. Judee Hunt was alert to the importance of establishing a basis

for recoenition. VG115 asserted that she recoenised Milan Lukic.

15 JUDGE HUNT: I'm sorrv. What about the Lukic? It's the same
16 problem we're going to eet throughout these cases unless vou tell us how
17 thev know the -- the witnesses know these neonle. we 1
re left up in the ai
18 the whole time.
19 MR. GROOME: Sorrv. Your Honour.
20 O. Witness 115. would vou nlease describe for us how vou knew Mr.
21 Milan Lukic.
*3 1D43.paras.28.40
T 611

4“5 1D4.on.11.14.15
45 TT para 718
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22 A. I didn't know Milan Lukic from before. when times from normal in

23 Visegrad. At that time he was a verv voune man. nice. tall. dark. He

24 came from the surroundines of Belgrade. Obrenovac. but otherwise he is a
2 5 native of Bosnia. and I think he comes from a village called Rui iste.

1015

1 actuallv. I had occasion to meet Milan personallv at work. in the offices

2 I worked in. both before the war and after the war.

3 O. Now I'd ask vou to ¢o to the point in time that vou were

4 describing seeing these two men in the red Passat. Would vou please

5 describe what vou observed them do?

6 A. In the red Passat. thev came prior to curfew. It was alreadv

7 dusk. Thev came to Pionirska Street. where I was residing temnorarilv.

8 because mv husband had alreadv left Viseerad. I was collecting papers and
9 documents for mv children. And when I was goine down the stens in the

10 house that I lived in. I thought that it was a car coming from mv own

11 companv to look for me personallv. But when I anpproached the car. 1

12 realised which car it was and I assumed who was inside. That was mv first
13 meetine with Milan. He 2ot out of the car. He was a little arroeant in

14 his behaviour. asked me where mv husband was. I told him where he had
15 gone. that he was on official business. on a business trip. I said

16 that — I told him the town mv husband had eone to and said that mv

17 parents lived there. He shouted at me and asked me whv the lights were

18 on. asked whether there were anv Muslims roundabout. I said I didn't know
19 whether there was anvbhbodv. I didn't think so. Then I recoenised Mitar

20 next to him. There was a third nerson Iving down in the seat behind.

21 probablv I didn't know that person. When I mentioned the town to which mv

22 husband had eone. that third person reacted all of a sudden because he was...
447

264. Therefore. the Chamber failed to consider that the basis for Witness VG115’s recognition
was undermined: she had admitted that she did not know him from before the war. Given

that the Chamber observed that the evidence of VG115 “did not stand up well under

. . . . 448 .. . .
cross-examination bv the Milan Lukic defence”™" her recoenition of Milan Lukic was

undermined.

265. In noarticular. VG115’s evidence was that she recoenised Sredoie Lukic during the

Bikavac Incident: she said that she could recognise him bv his voice and eves.**

VG115’s prior knowledee of Sredoie Lukic was greater than her orior knowledee of
“71D19.T.1014-1015.C£ T.670&T.794
4“8 TJ para.718
449 TJ para.643
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Milan Lukic: she testified that she knew Sredoie “personallv”’ and this was also the basis.
accented bv the Chamber. for her recoenition of him durine the Pionirska Incident.***

However. the Chamber did not accent VG115’s recoenition of Sredoie Lukic as being
present durine the Bikavac Incident.*' Had the Chamber applied the standards of
identification evidence consistentlv and rigorouslv. it was bound to also reiect VG115’s

“recoenition” of Milan Lukic.

266. Had the Chamber apolied the oropoer standards to the identification evidence directlv
implicatine Milan Lukic in the fire. it could not have concluded that these witnesses

correctlv recoenised Milan Lukic as a perpetrator.

SUB-GROUND 4(D): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT IN ITS ASSESSMENT OF THE

IDENTIFICATION EVIDENCE

267. The Chamber erred in fact in its assessment of the identification evidence implicating
Milan Lukic in the Bikavac Incident. No reasonable Chamber. havine orooerlv

considered that evidence. would have held that Milan Lukic had been correctlv identified.

268. Numerous prosecution witnesses identified Mitar Vasilievic was a participant in the

Bikavac fire: VG058:*? VG115%3: Zehra Turiacanin®*: and VG119.%° The Chamber

failed to consider the impact of these erroneous identifications on those witnesses’

purported identification of other participants in the Bikavac Incident.**

Zehra Turiacanin

269. Durine oral testimonv. Zehra Turiacanin asserted for the first time that when she had

entered Meho Aliic’s house. Milan Lukic pulled her eold chain off from around her

457
neck.* |

450 T7 paras.429-432

41 T] para.733.Cf.Partlv Dissentine Opinion of Judee David. paras.1133.1135

#27.1597.1611

3 1D18.p.12

$42D38

433 T.2404-2405

ii: See Sub-grounds 3(E) and 3(F): these witnesses could not have seen Mitar Vasilievic as described.
T.2312.
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458 While there is consistencv to the identitv of Milan

Lukic. the inconsistencv is important. It indicates a subconscious extension as to the
presence and involvement of Milan Lukic. In lieht of the submissions above. there was

no basis unon which her “recognition” of Milan Lukic could be deemed to be reliable.

270. No reasonable Chamber would have failed to eive sienificant weight to Zehra
Turiacanin’s inabilitv to identifv Milan Lukic in the court room. This strikes reasonable

doubt throueh the Chamber’s conclusion that she correctlv identified Milan Lukic.

VG058 and VG115

271. Other than Zehra Turiacanin. these were the onlv witnesses to alleee that thev saw Milan

Lukic narticinate in the Bikavac Incident. When assessing their evidence. the Chamber

considered that their evidence did not stand up well to cross examination.*’ No
reasonable Chamber could then pnroceed to place anv weight on their identification of

Milan Lukic as pnarticinatine in the Bikavac Incident.

272. In particular. contrarv to its overall assessment of the evidence of VG058 and VG115. the
Chamber accented VG058’s evidence that Milan Lukic used the butt of his rife to push

people into the house and was heard savine “Come on. let’s eet as manv in as

nossible.”*® The Chamber also acceoted that VG115 witness Milan Lukic throwine

461

orenades into the house.” The Chamber then proceeded to place significant weight on

the evidence of VG058 and VG114 “who witnessed Milan Lukic throwing petrol at the

. o . 462
house in order to set it alight.”

273,
48 92D38.0.2

9T para. 718
40 Y para.717
41T para.717
42 TT. para.717
43 1D40
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465

466

274.  No reasonable Chamber would adont put anv weight on the evidence of VG058 or
VG115. Either their evidence stood up to cross-examination. and should be believed. or it
did not. Having viewed the entiretv of their evidence and their demeanour. the Chamber
held that it did not. No reasonable Chamber would then select discredited accounts as the
kev basis for its conclusions as to identification of Milan Lukic and the attribution of

particular acts to him.

VG094 and VG119

275. These witnesses did not see the Bikavac Incident. but their evidence put Milan Lukic in
the vicinitv. In contrast to VG058 and VGI115. the Chamber was satisfied that their

evidence stood un well under cross-examination and that their credibilitv was not

467

shaken.™’ While such evidence is damagine. it is an insufficient basis unon which to hold

that Milan Lukic was “activelv involved” in the fire. If Milan Lukic’s challenges to Zehra

Turiacanin. VG058 and VG115 succeed. then the evidence of VG094 and VG119 is

insufficient to sustain a conviction.

SUB-GROUND 4(E): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT IN ITS ASSESSMENT OF
INCONSISTENCIES BETWEEN WITNESS ACCOUNTS OF KEY EVENTS FUNDAMENTAL TO
CONVICTION

276. No reasonable Chamber would have ignored fundamental inconsistencies in relation to

the kev events necessarv for the conviction of Milan Lukic for the Bikavac Incident.

464 1D43.paras.39.40
5 T1611-1612

46T 1610. 1D43

47 T para.723
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277. At Trial. a kev element of Milan Lukic’s defence was that the Bikavac Incident did not
take nlace. Therefore. inconsistencies between prosecution witnesses as to the location of
where the Meho Aliic house was located were of fundamental importance. This evidence
should have been viewed in the light that the witnesses were familiar with the locale.

There could be little excuse for them misidentifving which house was burned down.

278. Witness VG119 was unable to identifv the house on an aerial photoeranh.**® In addition.

her descrintions of the location of the house differed markedlv.**’

279.  Witness VG058 was unable to identifv the house on an aerial photoeraph.*” _

471 . . . . . 472
This conflicts with Zehra Turiacanin’s own account.

280. Moreover. the Chamber ignored fundamental inconsistencies between the evidence of
VG119 and VG094. The evidence of both of these witnesses was that Zehra Turiacanin
came to their house after the fire. VG119 testified that when thev left the house thev

passed bv the location of the house which was bv then burnt down. She said there was a

. 473 474
st o human fesh on v I I

SUB-GROUND 4(F): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY REVERSING THE BURDEN OF
PROOF ON ALIBI & SUB-GROUND 4(G): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT WHEN
HOLDING THAT MILAN LUKIC’S ALIBI WAS NOT REASONABLY POSSIBLY TRUE

(Withdrawn)

468 TT para.656

49 Cf 1D57.T.2410.T.2451-2452
4071 para.719

471 ng

42p133

4137 2410

44T 7029

577032
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SUB-GROUND 4(H): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW AND/OR FACT IN HOLDING THAT
THE CRIME OF EXTERMINATION WAS ESTABLISHED

281. See Sub-ground 3(D.
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FIFTH GROUND: THE KILLING OF HA.TRA KORIC

SUB-GROUND 5(A): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW OR ALTERNATIVELY IN FACT BY
HOLDING THAT THE MURDER OF HATRA KORIC WAS PREMEDITATED SUCH THAT THE
ELEMENTS OF MURDER AS A CRIME AGAINST HUMANITY OR WAR CRIME WERE NOT
ESTABLISHED

282. Due to limitations on word-count. this Sub-eround is withdrawn.

SUB-GROUND 5(B): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY PERMITTING IN-COURT

IDENTIFICATIONS

283. Two witnesses testified to the killine of Haira Koric: VG035 and CW?2. An in-court
identification was performed bv VGO035. who claimed to recoenise Milan Lukic as the

. . 476
person who shot Haira Koric.

284.  The Chamber should not have permitted VG035 to identifv Milan Lukic in court.
Counsel for Milan Lukic obiected to this brocedure at the time.*”” Bv allowine VG035 to
identifv Milan Lukic in court. serious preiudice resulted. It is notable that when asked if
she could identifv Milan Lukic in court. she asked if he could stand before identifving
him.*”®

285.  The identitv of Milan Lukic as the killer of Haira Koric was disputed. The killine of

Haira Koric took place on a dav between 28 June and 5 Julv 1992.47° VG035’s evidence

was that the first time she ever saw Milan Lukic was on 26 June 1992. when she said that

he introduced himself bv name and eave his vear of birth.**® She identified Milan Lukic
2.481

as the man who raned her three times on 27 June 199

286.

476 TJ para.747
47T 1688-1689
Y8 T 1688-1689
479 TJ para.758
80T 1654.1693
41 TT.para.695
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288.

2809.

290.

482 . .. . 483 .
_. This descrintion was reflected in the Interpol areest warrant.” Milan

Lukic has no birthmarks on his bodv and does not have blue eves.***

The Chamber erred bv permitting in-court identification. Bolsterine of VGO035’s
identification evidence should have been done bv the Prosecutor throueh an out-of-court

method which ensured the inteeritv of the identification.

At trial. VG035 testified that she was shown a photo-soread bv investigators in 2001 but
claimed that she did not identifv Milan Lukic for fear of personal safetv.**> She claimed
that she had been “waiting for this moment” to identifv Milan Lukic.**® The Chamber

blindlv accented this explanation.*’

However. VG035 had alreadv identified Milan Lukic in her 1998 statement — in ereat
detail — as the man who raned her and the man who killed of Haira Koric. Therefore. no
reasonable Chamber could have accented that she had “waired” for the rieht moment. The

Chamber erred in accenting her failure to identifv Milan Lukic in 2001.

In these circumstances. it is unaccentable to allow a witness to identifv an accused in
court. Even orofessional iudeges are not immune from the impact of a rane victim
identifving an accused as the man who raned her. The Appeals Chamber is invited to halt
this oreiudicial practice and consider the evidence of the identitv of Haira Koric’s killer
in the absence of VG-035’s evidence. For the reasons eiven below. an acauittal must

follow.

SUB-GROUND 5(C): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT IN ITS ASSESSMENT OF
IDENTIFICATION EVIDENCE

291.

There is little doubt that VG-035 endured a horrific ordeal. However. for the reasons

oiven above. it was not proved to the sufficient standard that it was Milan Lukic who

42 1D44.p.2
43 1D237

44 1D46

T 1696
486 TJ para.697
487 TJ para 697-755
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raped her. Her ourported recoenition of Milan Lukic as the killer of Haira Koric is

unsafe. as is Milan Lukic’s conviction for that crime.

292. The onlv other witness to identifv Milan Lukic as the killer of Haira Koric was CW2.
This witness’ prior knowledee of Milan Lukic was limited. Her evidence was that he had
come to her house in June 1992 with other armed. In addition. she said that she was at the

house where she and VG035 were stavine when Milan Lukic took VG035 awav and

488
raped her.

293. However. CW2’s knowledee of Milan Lukic was sparse. She thoueht that he and Sredoie

. 489
Lukic were brothers.

494

There was
no evidence unon which the Chamber could safelv conclude that CW?2 recoenised Milan

Lukic on the dav that Haira Koric was killed.

294. No reasonable Chamber could conclude that Milan Lukic was identified as the killer of

Haira Koric. His convictions should therefore be reversed.

SUB-GROUND 5(D): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT IN ITS ASSESSMENT OF THE
CREDIBILITY OF PROSECUTION WITNESSES AND INCONSISTENCIES BETWEEN WITNESS
ACCOUNTS OF KEY EVENTS FUNDAMENTAL TO CONVICTION

295. The Chamber erred in its assessment of the credibilitv of the accounts eiven bv VG-035

and CW2.

488 TT para.699

48 TJ para.699

40 p336.p.29

4“1 p336.0.30

492 p336.0.30

493 p336.0.30

494 P336.0.29.T.7079-7080
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296.  In her first*” statement®™® eiven in 2008. CW2 identified somebodv other than Milan
Lukic. as the person who shot Haira Koric.*”” CW2 testified that the contents of this
statement were truthful.**® The Chamber accented CW2’s explanation that she had

alwavs maintained that it was Milan Lukic who shot Haira Koric.**” No reasonable

Chamber could simplv discount Exhibit 1D228 in this wav: it establishes reasonable
doubt as to the identitv of the perpetrator. especiallv when considered in lieht of CW2’s
descrintion of Milan Lukic as havineg blonde hair. It is a fundamental orincinle of this

Tribunal that such doubt must be resolved in favour of an accused.

207. |, . here were

other material inconsistencies between their accounts. VG035’s evidence was that Milan

Lukic was with his “eroun” when he ordered them to stop. _

208, |
504 F . . .
_ a scene that is impossible to picture unless Haira

Koric was walkine backwards.

299. The Chamber also erred in its findine that Haira Koric died as a result of Milan Lukic’s

shootine. because her death was not nroved bevond reasonable doubt.

300. No death certificate was tendered into evidence. her bodv has never been found. she is

’9505

not listed in Ewa Tabeau’s list of potential victims from various biographic sources.

S T7073

4% 1D228

4“7 1D228.0.5

9% T7065

49 TJ.para.751

50T 7082

01 TT para.744

02 p336.n.42

3 1D44.0.6

594 1D44.p.6:T1.nara.745.fn.2419
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Therefore it has not been proven bevond reasonable doubt that Haira Koric has been shot
and died as a result. The Chamber relied exclusivelv upon unreliable testimonies of VG-

032 and CW?2 to nrove Koric’s death.

301. Inconsistencies between the number of attackers nresent (two as oopnosed to a “eroun”)
and remarkable events such as the victim attempting to hue the killer are material. Such
inconsistencies undermine the credibilitv of the accounts of the killine and the

identification of Milan Lukic as the killer.

302. For all the reasons given above. the Apnpeals Chamber should reverse Milan Lukic’s

conviction for the murder of Haira Koric and enter an acauittal.

5 p119
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SIXTH GROUND: INCIDENTS AT THE UZAMNICA

DETENTION CAMP
SUB-GROUND 6(A): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY PERMITTING IN-COURT
IDENTIFICATIONS

303. The Chamber erred bv allowing Nurko Dervisevic’® and Adem Berberovic® to identifv

Milan Lukic in Courtroom despite the obiections.”® Neither of these witnesses knew

509

Milan Lukic before the war.”” The evidentiarv basis for these witnesses’ “recognition”

was that “other detainees” told them who Milan Lukic was.’'’ The prosecution did not

. 511
call anv such detainees.

304. The oractice of conducting in-court identifications in such circumstances is undulv
preiudicial. The Chamber’s findines on identification should be considered in the absence
of the identification evidence of these witnesses.

SUB-GROUND 6(B): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY FAILING TO APPLY DUE CARE TO
IDENTIFICATION EVIDENCE

305. Three prosecution witnesses egave viva voce evidence concerning the Uzamnica Barrack

. . 512 513 .. 514 .
Incidents: Adem Berberovic.” © Islam Kustura’~ and Nurko Dervisevic.””" The evidence

of a fourth witness. VG25. was admitted pursuant Rule 92 auater because his health did

515

not allow him to travel.” ~ VG025 was the onlv witness who had anv orior knowledee of

Milan Lukic.

VG025

306 T 1968-1969

07 12520-2523

308 T 1969:T.2518.

39 TJ paras. 802.810.

S10TT paras. 802.811.

3" The prosecution’s case was that between June 1992 and October 1994 around 45 men. 11 men and two children
were detained in the Uzmanica camn: TJI.para. 760.
512 77.802-806

313 T71.807-809

S4Ty.810-814

515 TT par.815-818
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306. The Chamber erred in law in its treatment of the evidence of VG025. This purported
identification went to the acts and conduct of the accused — a factor weiehing aeainst

admissibilitv under Rule 92 quater.

307. The defence obiected to the admission of VG025’s evidence and reauested that he testifv
bv video link. The Chamber considered that the witness was too sick to testifv bv this

method and that. Judee Robinson dissenting. the statements were admissible.’'®

308. The basis for the Chamber’s reliance unon VG025’s evidence was that it was
“corroborated” bv the evidence of other witnesses. However. these were all hearsav
witnesses of varving deerees. Corroboration should not be based unon such a diluted
standard. The effect of the Chamber’s anoroach was that the defence was precluded from

cross-examining anv witness who could oroverlv claim to “recognise” Milan Lukic.

309. |
518 . .

auestions the extent of VG025’s orior knowledee of Milan LLukic and whether he reallv

“recongised” him. The defence was unable to cross-examine VG025 on the basis for his

“recoenition”.

310.  There was further evidence that VG025 did not “recoenise” Milan Lukic. ||| Gz

Therefore. the Chamber erred in considering that VG025 “recogenised” Milan Lukic at
all. The Chamber’s statement that it was “mindful”’ of the absence of cross-examination

and the absence of VG025’s identification of Milan Lukic in photoeraphs does not

adeauatelv address the difficulties with this witness’ evidence.’>°

S161T-98-32/1-T. Decision on Prosecution Motion to Admit Statements Pursuant to Rule 92 Ouarter (VG-025)

(22.10.2008).
1 p168

518 p170.para.2
S 1D75.0.2
520 T para.824.
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Adem Berberovic. Islam Kustura and Nurko Dervisevic

311. The three witnesses who purported to corroborate VG025’s “recognition” were Adem

Berberovic. Islam Kustura and Nurko Dervisevic. None had anv orior knowledee of

Milan Lukic.”?'

312. The Chamber held that it was “reasonable to infer”. on the basis of the conditions of

detention and the length of time over which thev were detained together. that VG025
“confirmed” the other detainees’ “knowledee” that it was Milan Lukic who beat them.”*
There was no evidence to this effect. Such an adverse inference should not have been
drawn. Therefore. the Chamber erred bv treating Berberovic and Dervisevic as

“recognition” witnesses.

313. The Chamber further failed to direct itself to the likelihood of an accurate identification.

523

The Chamber found that detainees were beaten inside the barracks.””” where there was no

electricitv.”® It was dark inside the hanger. The evidence showed that Dervisevic had

problems with his evesieht and that he complained about not being able to see

proverlv.’?

SUB-GROUND 6(C): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT IN ITS ASSESSMENT OF
IDENTIFICATION EVIDENCE

314. The visual descrintion of Milan Lukic bv Berberovic in his statements could fit almost

anvone.526

315. Islam Kustura had no orior knowledee of Milan Lukic. He learned the identitv of Milan

Lukic from an unidentified person in the camo.* [ AR

21T .2507-2508:T.2181:T.2508:T.1962
322 T .para.826.

323 T .para.769

324 T para.761

25 T .para.804.

2 P142.n.9

ST 2181
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_528 VGO025. who knew Sredoie Lukic for 15 vears.

testified that he saw Sredoie Lukic at Uzamnica onlv once.’” if at all.**° It is therefore

impossible that Kustura nrooerlv identified Milan Lukic.

316. VGO025°’s based his “recognition” of Milan Lukic in pnart on a red Passat vehicle.

531

However. he claims to have seen this car before the death of Behiia Zukic.”” No other

witness testified about seeine Milan Lukic drivine the red Passat orior to Zukic’s death.

317. Therefore. combined with the errors alleeed elsewhere in relation to this Ground. no
reasonable Chamber could nlace anv weight on the purported identification evidence of

Milan Lukic bv Dervisevic. Kustura. or Berberovic.

SUB-GROUND 6 (D): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT IN ITS ASSESSMENT OF THE
CREDIBILITY OF PROSECUTION’S WITNESSES AND INCONSISTENCIES IN THEIR
ACCOUNTS.

318. Adem Berberovic testified that he saw Milan Lukic in the Uzamnica Camp everv month

of 1993.%? Islam Kustura testified that Milan Lukic came to the Uzamnica Camp everv

533

other dav from 1992 to summer of 1994.°”” Nurko Dervisevic testified that he saw ‘Milan

Lukic’ throughout Sentember 1993.7** As outlined below. these accounts are incredible

535

oiven Milan Lukic’s imprisonment at these times.””” The Chamber erred bv considering

such evidence when assessine the credibilitv of these witnesses.

SUB-GROUND 6(E): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN LAW BY REVERSING THE BURDEN OF
PROOF ON ALIBI

319. In evaluatine whether the Chamber reversed the burden of proof on alibi. the Appeals

Chamber should consider whether the Chamber met the standard of due care in the

8T 2181:T2189
2972003

30 p171.p.3.0ara.9
31T .1734-35
3272540
312199
3471993

535 1D238
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assessment of the evidence.’*® As areued below. the Chamber reversed the burden of
proof because it failed to meet the standard of due care in its assessment of the alibi
evidence.

SUB-GROUND 6(F): THE CHAMBER ERRED IN FACT WHEN HOLDING THAT MILAN
LUKIC’S ALIBI WAS NOT REASONABLY POSSIBLY TRUE

320.  For laree portions of 1993 and 1994. Milan Lukic was detained bv the Serbian
Authorities. Exhibit 1D238 records that Milan Lukic was imprisoned or detained during
the following periods: from 10 March 1993 to 13 March 1993: from 27 March 1993 to 14
Avril 1993: 29 June 1993 to 9 October 1993: and from 15 October 1993 to 6 June
1994.7*" The Chamber erred bv holdine that this documentarv evidence onlv showed that
Milan Lukic was detained “for a few davs in March 1993 and in the first half of April
199377

321. No reasonable Chamber would have concluded that Exhibit 1D238 did not “tend to show

that he was not nresent in Uzamnica camp at the time of the beatings because it relates to

. . . 539
different time veriods.”

322. Conseauentlv. Milan Lukic could onlv nossiblv have been at Uzamnica for a few months
in 1993. but certainlv not ‘everv month’ as asserted.>** Berberovic testified that he saw

Milan Lukic everv month of 1993.>*! This is impossible.

536 . . .
Zigiranvirazo Al.para.2 ]

37 1D238
338 T para.829.
3 TJ para.831
30T 2540
41T 2540
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SEVENTH GROUND: VARIOUS BREACHES OF THE RIGHT
TO A FAIR TRIAL

SUB-GROUND 7(A): INADEOUATE TIME AND RESOURCES GIVEN

A. Lack of Time and Facilities Prior to the Commencement of Trial

323. The trial was accelerated 12 June 2008. without eiving anv ooportunitv to
adeauatelv orevare. It must be taken into account the sum of events:
Trial was scheduled for 9 Julv 2008:

OTP proposine to double the scope of the Indictment®*:

) 543
c. Recent re-assienment of lead counsel”™:

324. The Chamber ienored factors as to trial nreparedness of the defense. includine:
a. lack of co-counsel to assist lead counsel during trial:>**

b. lack of nre-trial preparation bv previous counsel:

. 545
c. recent appointment of lead counsel.

325

546 . P . . . 4547 .
- Such lack of forewarnine is incredible since Alarid.”" had iust been re-

assiened as Lead Counsel.>*® havine onlv been involved in the case since 10 March 2008.

Unredacted statements of manv OTP witnesses were onlv made available to the defense

on 1 April 2008.%* Thus. a sienificant amount of the Prosecution’s case was unavailable

until 2 months before trial.

%2 Prosecution Motion Seeking Leave to Amend the Second Amended Indictment.16.06.2008
3 Registrv Decision.12.06.2008

34 Reeistrv Decision.04.07.2008

3% Reeistrv Decision.12.06.2008

M67.15-22

3471 ead counsel at Trial

548 Reeistrv Decision.12.06.2008

3% Order for Extension of Time.01.04.2008
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326. Thereafter the Defense raised the difficulties/impossibilities of adeauate

preparation arisine from the earlv trial date. which the Court dismissed.”°

327. Intensive work that took time awav from case prepvaration included amending a

551

prior filing as to Alibi. The defense was faced with re-doing their defense ore-trial

brief.”®> 1t should be recalled that due to problems with prior counsel manv of these

deadlines had to be deferred and completed bv Alarid AFTER 12 June 2008.%

328. Furthermore. in June the Prosecution sought to chanee its witnesses.”>* Thus. less
than one month before trial the Defense still did not know the entiretv of the

Prosecution’s case.

B. Cross-Examination

329. The limits imposed upon cross-examination also infrinee upon rights that

Appellant is entitled to under the ICCPR(Article 6). The iurisprudence of the Euronean

Court of Human Rights affirms that cross-examination is fundamental to a fair trial.>>
The ECHR has repeatedlv stated that the Defense must be given “an adeauate and prooer

opportunity to challenee and question a witness aeainst him”>° and that Art. 6(1) is

“intended above all to secure the interests of the defense and those of the prooer

.. . . . 557
administration of iustice.”

330. In this case the Chamber imposed restrictions on cross-examination time (60% of

. . . . 558
the examination in chief).

3301199

551 Decision on Prosecution Motion for an Order Reauirine the Accused Milan Lukic to Clarifv Alibi Notice Served
under Rule 67(A)(1)(a).15.05.2008

552 Decision On Prosecution’s Response And Motion For Clarification Of Defence Pre-Trial Briefs.16.05.2008

553 T .204-205

5% PRurther Decision on Prosecution’s Motion to Amend Rule 65 ter Witness List and Related
Submissions.19.06.2008

33 Saidi v. France.17 EHRR 251 [19941. para 44 (ECHR): Van Mechelen v. Netherlands.25 EHRR 647 119981
(ECHR).nara 51

36 Krasniki v. Czech Republic.120061 EHRR 51277/99.para.33 (ECHR): Kostovski v. Netherlands. 119911 EHRR
434.para.41 (ECHR)

37 Acauaviva v. France.119951 EHRR 48.para.66 (ECHR)

8 T.199-203:2287-2379:3310-3356:3357-3375
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Prosecution witnesses eave multiple written statements. includine manv

inconsistencies. and contradictions for cross-examination purposes. Some of the
witnesses that had multiole statements included: VG42(4)™: VG14(3)°%°: VG38(5Y°":
VG13(6Y%%: VG63(6)°: VG16(4Y%*: 55. vG24(6)°°: |G

PO7: VG131(3Y%%: VG94(3)™: VG79(3Y™: VG11/Spahic(5Y": VG97(2)77:
VG153V VG104 ™ VG32(2):  VG84(5)7%:  VG18(2)Y": VG784
VG1012Y7: VG58(4Y*:  VG892Y™:  VG82(2Y*:  VG119(4®:  VG17(2)%:
VG64(2Y°%: Amor Masovic(5)°*: VG141(4*: CW202Y*: VG47(2y°%: VG61(3)™:

1764

Nurko Dervisevic(2)Y"': VG136(2)>?

3 1D67.1D66.1D68.1D69

%0 1D1.1D76.P5

1 9D4.1D26.1D27.P44.P45

32 9D6.2D8.2D9.1D29.P60. P62
%39D12.2D14.2D11.2D13.1D49:1D51
%4 9D15.2D16.2D17.2D18

%5 9D20.1D61.P142

36 9D34.2D35.1D79.1D80.1D81
7 9D36.2D38.2D39.1D83.P66.P139
3% 9D40.1D88.1D]Y

39 9D69.1D227.P335

0 1D2.P7.P8

1 1D6.1D7.P19.P20.P21

2 1D8.P28

3 1D18.1D19.1D21

574 1D23.1D24.P34.P35

575 1D30.1D31

576 1D32.P72.P73.P74.P82

577 1D33.1D34

578 1D35.P88.P89.P92

579 1D36.1D37

380 1D40.1D41.1D42.1D43

81 1D47.1D48

#2 1D52.P116

83 1D57.1D58.1D59.1D60

384 1D63.1D64

35 1D70.P159

86 1D77.P172.P173.P179.P183
%7 1D224.1.1D224.2.1D224.3.1D224.4
88 1D228.P336

89 P23 P24

50 p36.P37.P38

PTP111.P112

2 p331.P330
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C. Inadeauate time to nrepnare defense case

332. Due to staffine issues of the defense. the preparation of the defense case-in-chief
was severelv hampered. With the ongoing trial the presence of both lead and co-counsel
was reauired in The Hague. As such. at the end of the Prosecution’s case-in-chief. the
defense counsels had not had an opportunitv to meet with potential witnesses.

333. On 13 November 2008 the Defense sought a 6 week pause. after the Prosecution

. 593
case. to nerform the necessarv nreparations for the defense case.

334. The Chamber denied the same. holding Rule 65ter filings due 19 November 2008

(one dav after the ruling). and settine 1 December 2008 as the start date.’” The list
contained 124 names. nredominatelv due to the fact that it was unknown if manv

witnesses could be located or even if thev would be willing to testifv.>”

D. Limitation on witnesses the defense could call

335. The Chamber ordered that the Defense could call 45 witnesses for a total of 60

596
hours.

336. Among the other 124 were witnesses who eave statements to the OTP and thus
were being solelv called to confirm same. and records custodians. OTP investieators and
translators were included solelv to address witness statements chaneed at oroofine. The

Defense therefore filed a reauest seeking to exclude the above from the 45 witness

... 597
limit.

337. Soecificallv the following witnesses were the subiect of the motion:

a. VG-55:VG-59:VG-31:VG-10:VG-26:VG-60:Jasmin Odobasic (OTP uncalled

witnesses).

93 Milan Lukié¢’s Motion For Extension Of Time To Prenare The Defence Case-In-Chief.13.11.2008

3% Decision on Milan Lukic’s Motion for extension of time to prepare the defense case in chief.18.11.2008

395 Milan Lukic’s Submissions Pursuant to 65 Ter (G).19.11.2008

3 Order Pursuant To Rule 73 Ter Of The Rules Of Procedure And Evidence.26.11.2008

57 Milan Lukic’s Motion to Exclude Custodial and Statement Witnesses from Total Witnesses allotted.1.12.2008
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b. 11 OTP Investigators/Internreters.
c. Slavko Sandev (#65): Diordie Mrsevic (#66): Viseerad (#96): Mokra Gora (#73)

(record custodians)

338
I I ' However. the

Chamber denied this motion.’”

339. A motion to compel disclosure of contact information for OTP uncalled witnesses

was filed 1 December 2009.°°' The Chamber onlv eranted the Motion. 30 March 2009. a

2

full 4 months after the defense filed their motion.*° The decision recoenized the

sienificance of this disclosure statine:

The Chamber considers that the Defence's forensic purnose in seeking to contact
the persons is evident and that anv information thev mav orovide to the Defence
is likelv to be of relevance to the Defence case.®”

340. With the late date of the information being eiven. it was impossible. eiven the
uncoming end date of trial and the time reauired to locate and process witness travel. to

make use of the comnelled information to present these witnesses.

341. The delav bv the Chamber in comnelling this information for 4 months constitutes

discernible error that severelv nreiudiced Appoellant.

342. In another instance. the Defense. became aware that persons who were listed as

victims were alive. The defense sought. a stav in proceedings to conduct further

604

investigations. That reauest was denied. Nevertheless. the defense was able to locate

¥ T.1717-1718:T.3193-3195.

% T7.3193-3194:T. 3338

%9 Decision on Motions Relatine to Milan Lukic Upndated Witness List”4.12.2008

891 Milan Lukié's motion to compel disclosure of contact information.1.12.2008

592 Decision On Milan Lukié¢'s Motion To Compel Disclosure Of Contact Information And On The Prosecution's
Ureent Motion To Compel Production Of Contact Information.30.03.2009

593 Ibid at para.24

594 Milan Lukic’s Notice of Verification of Alleged Victim Survivors and Aoplication for Stav of Proceedines with
A-H.09.03.2009
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CWI1. a person alleged to have perished in Pionirska. who testified as to persons who

were erroneouslv on the victim list. All told. 17 alleeed victims of Pionirska were called

into serious auestion bv CW

605
177

Alleged Victim

Transcrint

5.Hasena LNU

Tr. 5561/13-2

15.Aner Kursnahic

Tr.5564/16-23

23.Hairiia Kursnahic

Tr.5565/24-5566/10

26.Hasan Kurspahic

Tr.5566/21-5567/19

27.Hasiba Kurspnahic

Tr.5568/15-5569/1

28.Hasniia Kursnahic

Tr.5569/6-12

34.Izeta Kurspahic

Tr.5569/25-5570/2

35.Kada Kursnahic

Tr.5570/3-13

36.Latifa Kursnahic Tr.5570/14-15

37 Leila Kurspahic Tr. 5570/19-20
38.Maida Kurspnahic Tr. 5570/24-5571/10
42 .Meva Kurspahic Tr. 5571/22-5572/6

43 Mina Kurspnahic

Tr.5572/14-21

47 Munira Kursnahic

Tr.5573/7-9

55.Saha Kurspahic

Tr.5574/9-11

57.Seila Kurspahic

Tr.5574/15-22

66.Haraha Sehic Tr.5576/23-24
343. The Court erred bv not attributing more weight/sienificance to the foregoing.
344. The Defense sought to recall OTP witnesses as to Pionirska.®® The Chamber

allowed the recall of onlv VG61(Huso Kurspahic).?”’

The information provided bv the

defense investigations. the testimonv of CW1 and the corrections of Huso Kurspahic

were not known nor available at the time these OTP witnesses originallv testified. Bv not

allowing the defense to confront these witnesses. and then positivelv relving on these

same witnesses to convict the Aopellant the Chamber erred.

605

Street Charges In The Indictment.24.03.2009
696 Milan Luki¢’s Amended Fourth Defence Motion To Amend Its Rule 65ter Witness List 24 March 2009

807 T 6972-6973
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E. Prior counsel did no Prenaratorv Work

345. Since 6 Aoril 2006 through the commencement of trial LLukic had been assiegned 3

different attornevs. two of whom cut off communication with Appellant before adeauate

608
replacement.

346. The first. assiened 6 April 2006. was onlv preparing the case for four months
before Appellant reauested new counsel.’” His work was almost exclusivelv focused on
defending the Rule 11 bis anplication.

347. After over a vear of Lukic having no effective communications with counsel.

. 610
Second counsel was assiened on 5 December 2007.

348. On 4 Julv 2008 the withdrawal of second counsel was eranted bv the Registrv.®"!
Second counsel neither facilitated preparation for trial. nor was in a olace to assist with

the trial on 9 Julv 2008.

349. In Kraiisnik the Appeals Chamber in reiecting the arecuments of ineffective
assistance of counsel stressed that:

The Avppeals Chamber accents that the work product handed over from Counsel
Brashich to Counsel Stewart was not in as good a state as it should have been.
Nonetheless. the new Defence team benefited from some of the work done bv the
Brashich team. in particular the pre-trial brief. Moreover. the Chamber and the
Registrar were aware of the situation. and addressed it bv adiustineg the pace of trial
and allotting the new Defence team substantial leecal-aid time for ore-trial
preparation.’'?

350. However. in contrast. first counsel did not nrovide a ore-trial brief. and the filings
made bv the second had to be considerablv amended/re-filed. includine the ore-trial brief.
after being ruled insufficient bv the Chamber. Although aware of the nroblem with orior
counsel. the Chamber and Reeistrv did not adiust the pace of trial nor allot substantial
legal-aid time for pre-trial preparation.

898 Registrv Decision.12.06. 2008
59 Ibid.. Milan Lukic Letters to the Chamber filed 10.08.2007. 29.08.2007
810 Registrv Decision.5.12.2007

811 Registrv Decision.4.06.2008
12 Kraiisnik Al.para.47
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351. A new co-counsel for the defense was not available until 23 October 2008.°'* and

. . 614
onlv conducted cross-examination of one witness’ .

352. The foregoing errors give cause for Appellant to be eranted a new and fair trial.

SUB-GROUND 7(B): THE PROSECUTION REPEATEDLY BREACHED ITS DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS

(withdrawn)

SUB-GROUND 7(C): INAPPROPRIATE CONDITIONS WERE PLACED UPON THE PRESENTATION
OF DEFENCE EVIDENCE. THE DEFENCE WAS PRECLUDED FROM INTRODUCING EVIDENCE
CONTRADICTING THE ACCOUNTS GIVEN BY PROSECUTION WITNESSES.

353. During the Prosecution’s case-in-chief. the defense was not permitted to utilize
OTP witness statements to confront witnesses during cross-examination. Soecificallv.
uncalled OTP witnesses (usuallv close familv members of witnesses) gave conflicting
often exculpatorv statements. Bv wav of example. a summarv of some of the said
statements is as follows:

a. VG31 - identifies a Tanaskovic and Trifkovic as responsible potentiallv for 2 of
the scheduled victims who were not seen again.’"”

b. VG59 — exoresslv disavows his prior statement that “Milan Lukic” arrested him.
saving expresslv it was not Milan Lukic.’'® This wife (VG64) testified Milan
Lukic arrested her husband. the same Milan Lukic she identified for the remainder
of her testimonv. 1

c. Persons eiving differing accounts of Milan Lukic’s aboearance contradicting OTP

witnesses

613 Registrv Decision.23.10.2008

14 Amor Masovic

%15 Milan Lukic’s Submissions Pursuant to 65 Ter (G).19.11.2008. Document #10
%16 Ihid. documents #29-31
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354. In almost everv instance. the efforts of the defense to utilize the statements in

cross-examination were denied. with the caveat that the defense would have to call the

. . . . 617
person in their own case-in-chief.

355. However. during the defense case-in-chief. the defense was orevented from
calline these nersons bv wav of the prosecution’s continuing refusal to give the contact
information for these former OTP witnesses to the defense. and the delav on the part of
the Chamber to issue a ruling comoelling the same. until iust davs before the end of the

trial.

SUB-GROUND 7(D): THE CHAMBER FAILED TO ADDRESS UNDUE INFLUENCE OF
WITNESSES BY THIRD PARTIES.

356

619

357.

621

622

6
6

177.2902-2903:T.6511-6512
18
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EIGHTH GROUND: SENTENCING

SUB-GROUND 8(A): FAILURE TO TAKE ACCOUNT OF POSITION AND AGE OF MILAN
LUKIC AS A MITIGATING FACTOR

372. The Chamber erred in failing to eive weight to mitieatine factors and failed to
anplv the orincinle of prooortionalitv. Personal circumstances of an accused and factual
backdroo of a particular case ought to be taken into account in sentencing as ‘“‘there are

certain features of [Appellant’s] case that must be taken into account in his favour when

.1 . . 671
deciding unon the measure of sentence to be imnosed unon him.”

373. The iurisprudence has recoenized that the ‘“harsh environment” of the armed

conflict must be considered and weighed in the sentence.’”> Such an approach recognizes
peonle are forced to act/react in extreme circumstances. in a climate of fear and
uncertaintv. It is artificial and uniust to exclude this entirelv from consideration in
arriving at an appropriate sentence. The critical elements to be considered are the manner
in which Appellant was involuntarilv thrust into a verv chaotic war. and his verv voung

age and status as a reserve policeman.

374. Milan Luki¢ was a hardworking and eainfullv emploved 25 vear-old who worked

3

. . . . 67
in Switzerland and Germanv and lived in Belerade. He saved up and purchased an

apartment in Belerade before the war.%*

375. Zeliko Markovic described him as a paragon of eentlemen-like behavior. who

used to sell drinks and food at the bus station to earn monev.®”> Prior to the war he never

) ) . 676
showed anv traces of intolerance towards persons of different ethnic eroups.

"' Delalic.TJ.vara.1283

52 Delalic.TJ.vara.1283

673 T.3844-3845:T.4087-4089:1D203. p.8.11
%4 1D239

875 T.3844-3845.

676 T 3845.
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376. It must be recalled that after the hostilities had erunted in ViSeerad. Luki¢
returned from Switzerland. and told Markovic that he needed to eoto ViSeerad to check

on his ailine mother and evacuate her out to Belerade.®”’

377. That Appellant intended to return to Belerade with his mother via rental car is

demonstrated bv the fact that he nut down a deposit of 1000 Swiss francs. which was a

oreat wealth in 1992.%7%

378. At a checknoint the Police instructed Apoellant he had to register/report to the
Vigeerad Police Station.®” After beine in the Police Station Appellant came out dressed
in a police uniform.®® Markovic testified that Lukic had been mobilized into the reserve
force of the Police® Dr. Houeh describes the manner in which Appellant was

. . . . . . . 682
involuntarilv tricked into the Police and was inexperienced.

1751

379. Markovic testified that Appellant was upset over these developments.®®® and

exclaimed he should have staved in Switzerland.®®*

This was not considered bv the

Chamber.
380. As to his character/reputation. Aopellant was kind towards peoole recardless of
nationalitv.®®® He was said not to distineuish between peoble based on their ethnicity.%%¢

I that Luki¢ behaved well

877 T 3846-3849.

678 T 3851-3852.

679 7.3853.

680 1 3855,

681 73855,

82 1D203. p.12-18.21-23
083 T 3855-3856.

684 T 3858.

85T .3951.

086 T.3951.
8877 4486.
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688 C "
towards evervone.’*" he never eneaged in fiehts or auarrels and was a positive. unbeat

‘[)631‘801'1.689

381. There was evidence oresented of his efforts. even during the war. to assist persons

. . . . 690
inclusive of ethnic Muslims.

382. In Erdemovic. the Chamber accented as mitieating the voung aee (23 vears) of
Erdemovic. as well as his low rank.’®' A similar analvsis ought to have been emploved

here.

SUB-GROUND 8(B): FAILURE TO CONSIDER THE CLOSING REMARKS OF MILAN LUKIC

(withdrawn)

SUB-GROUND 8(C): FAILURE TO CONSIDER GOOD CHARACTER AND PERSONAL
CIRCUMSTANCES OF MILAN LUKIC

383. The iudement discounts entirelv the personal circumstances of Appellant.*”?
Likewise the Chamber failed to take into account the lack of a criminal record as a
mitieatine factor. Other cases have focused on prior positive conduct/eood character.®®?

Thus the same should have been considered and a reduction of the sentence should have

been imposed.

384. The Defense nresented some factors identified above in Sub-ground 8(a). and also
including:
a. Prior to the conflict. Milan Luki¢ was a hard-working. law-abiding and productive
citizen.
b. Apopellant did not have anv criminal record before the chaos and war that erunted

in Vigeerad in 1992 %%

088 T 4499,

689 T 4499.

890 T 3954-3955:T.3957-3959:T.3965-3966:T.4190:T4326-4328.
9 Erdemovic.TY para.92-95

92 TJ para. 1076

93 Krnoielac. TY.0ara.519: Kunreskic. Al.para.459

4 1D234
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c. The Analvsis of Dr. George Hough. discussed herein below.

SUB-GROUND 8(D): FAILURE TO CONSIDER EXPERT EVIDENCE RELEVANT TO
SENTENCING

385. Althoueh the iudement asserts that the Psvchological analvsis of Dr. Houeh was

. 695 . .. . .. . ..
taken into account the imposition of a life sentence indicates otherwise. This is

particularlv true in that the Chamber’s discussion fails to make note of a bulk of Houeh’s

. 696
findines.

. 697 - . .

386. Dr. Hougeh’s evidence™ ' is relevant to consider Apoellant’s his mens rea and/or
. iy . .. . 698 .

his abilitv to stand up to persons who were in a power position over him.” " both in terms

of the positions that thev held durine the war.?” and the positions of trust thev had held

. 700
earlier .

387. Houeh concluded a relativelv tranauil life before the war. and then the war neriod.

1 ., . . . .
Luki¢’s induction into the war was slow. first

702
d.

when evervthine chaneed for Appellant.”®

being shocked bv the media reports on television while he was still in Switzerlan

703

Luki¢ eave donations to refugee causes. irresnective of the eroup. Hougeh confirmed

that an old school professor was in charee of the Police. and he oressed Lukic into

704

service. Houeh renorted that Aopellant did not seem to catch on to the seriousness of

05

the situation until later.’ According to Hough. Luki¢’s induction into the war was

passive “eoine alone with the flow”. forced mobilization doing police work without

1749

. . 706
trainine.

895 TJ para.1074-1075

6% TJ para.1074

7 1D203

98 Branimir Savovic&Risto Perisic
89 Chief of Police and President of the Crisis Staff.
700 Both were his teachers in school.
01T 6299-6300.

2T 6300

3 T.6300

7947 6300-6301

57,6301

%6 T.6301-6302.
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388. Appellant’s role as a policeman was low level. essentiallv actine on lists

eenerated bv superiors of “extremists” to be rounded up for interroeations: Luki¢ alwavs

. . . . . . 707
introduced himself because he viewed himself as a nrofessional noliceman. The error

of the Chamber in this reeard is evident in that it exoressed that no such evidence was

]Cd.708

389. Hougeh described that the nsvchological testing showed Lukic to be a man of
average intellicence. " Appellant is more a follower than a leader. a man in the
undistineuished middle.”"® Appellant accordine to Houeh. is a man who’s auite obedient

to authoritv.”"' This analvsis was not part of the Judement.

7T 6304-6305
708 T para. 1075
M T6313
0T 6314-6315
16319
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OVERALL RELIEF SOUGHT

1.  For all of the foreeoine reasons. Milan Lukic respectfullv reauests that the
Appeals Chamber reverse the Trial Judement and enter a verdict of NOT GUILTY

in respnect of all counts.

2. Further and alternativelv. if the Appeals Chamber considers that anv of the
verdicts recorded against Milan Lukic should stand. the sentence should be reduced
because. when sentencine. the Trial Chamber committed discernible errors as set

out above.

Word Count: 29.891

Dated this 17th dav of December 2009
At The Hacue

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED.

Tomislav Visniic
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